### CTTY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT Year Ended June 30, 2014

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT Year Ended June 30, 2013

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	550
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL	
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND	
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL	
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERN-	
MENT AUDITING STANDARDS	80 - 81
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES	82

82

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

## ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT Year Ended June 30, 2014

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page No
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	1-2
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	3 - 16
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Net Position	17
Statement of Activities	18
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds	19
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position	20
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds	21
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes	-
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	22
Statement of Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds	23
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position -	
Proprietary Funds	24
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds	25 - 26
Notes to Financial Statements	27 - 60
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund	61 - 64
Infrastructure Condition and Maintenance Data	65
Schedule of Funding Progress - OPEB	66
Schedule of Employer Contributions - OPEB	67
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Nonmajor Governmental Funds	
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds	68
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Permanent Funds	69
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in	
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds	70
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in	
Fund Balances - Normajor Permanent Funds	71
Budgetary Comparison Schedule:	
Greenlawn-Shady Rest Cemetery Special Revenue Fund	72
Community Development Fund	73
Municipal Aid Special Revenue Fund	74
Proprietary Funds - Enterprise Funds	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule:	2. 1.
Water and Wastewater Fund	75 - 77
Sanitation Fund	78
Fiber Optic Fund	79



1017 Cologs Senst - P.O. Res 2160 Bouling Green, Kentarty 41100-2160 Phone [170] 843-0244 Fax [170] 843-0245

### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Mayor, Commissioners and City Manager City of Franklin, Kentucky

#### Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fand and the aggregate remaining fand information of the City of Frenklin, Kennethy (City) as of and for the year coded June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as fisted in the table of contents.

### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material mistatement, whether due to financi or error.

Our responsibility is to express opinious on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with moditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial multis contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comproller General of the United States. Those standards require text we plan may perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

As sudit involves performing procedures to obtain sudit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the sudflor's judgment, including the sussessment of the risks of material institutement of the financial statements, whether due to fire due error, in reaking those risk assessments, the sudface considers internal control relevant to the entity's proportion and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design sundit procedures that are appropriate in the elevantances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express so such opinion. An notif also includes evaluating the appropriatness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the expression of the financial statements.

We believe that the sucit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our andit opinious.

The Honorable Mayor, Commissioners and City Manager City of Frankfia, Kentucky Page Two

#### Opinion

In our opision, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all autorial respects, the respective financial portion of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fand, and the aggregate renaising fund information of the City of Franklin, Kenackly, as of loce 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where aggleriable, cash forms thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### Other Mailers

#### Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the annagement's discussion and earlysis on pages 3 - 16. General Fand budgetary comparison archecials on pages 61 - 64, infrastructure condition and maintenance date on pages 96, and schedules of funding propers and enoploys contributions as pages 66 - 67 be per recented to supplement the batic financial statements. Such infrastructure, attempts on pages 66 - 67 be per recented to the proprient of both in financial statements, as though not part of the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational economic, or historical content. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with realizing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the informations and comparing the information for consistency with imanagement is responsed to our chapters, the bester financial statements, and other how-locky we obtained sharing our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide my assurance on the information because the financial procedures of the supplementary indicates the supplement

#### Other Information

Our made was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's bacin financial patements. The conducing and individual finals patements and schoolsts on pages 63 - 79 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required put of the less financial statements.

The combining and individual mornajor famil financial statements and proprietary finds budgetary compurison schoolster are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been projected to the medicing procedures applied in the model of the basic financial statements. Such information has been projected to the medicing comparing and enter records used to prepare the basic financial statements and certain soldiness procedures, including comparing and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements themselves, as desire additional procedures in accordance with sufficient procedures in accordance with sufficient statements that themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with sufficient statements are continued to the sufficient of the sufficient of the sufficient in the sufficient to the basic financial statements as a whole.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also based our terport dated April 3, 2015, on our consideration of the CSy's internal control over functional reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and great agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our leading of internal control over function proving and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opicion on internal countrol over formulal reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an anoth performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over ferancial reporting and compliance.

Circles Circles Bosting Green, Kunnicky April 3, 2015

-2-

#### City of Franklin, Kentucky Management's Discussion and Analysis Years Euded June 30, 2014 and 2013

As management of the City of Franklin (City) we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. The information contained in this MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the information contained in the Accountants' Reports and Financial Statements and Supplementary

### Financial Highlights

- Total assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by \$36,244,071 and \$35,096,401 for the prior fiscal year.
- As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental activities reported
  ending net position of \$15,472,916 which includes uncestricted net position of
  \$1,805,720. Respectively for the prior fiscal year \$16,401,127 of net position and
  \$3,114,242 of uncestricted net position.
- At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was \$1,948,127 with \$3,162,110 for the prior fiscal year.
- For the year ended June 30, 2014, total debt decreased by a net amount of \$747,719
  during the year. Included in this fiscal year the City refunded its 2010 General
  Obligation. Refunding Note in the amount of \$3,544,908. The City issued
  \$3,572,003 in a General Obligation Refunding note to refund its outstanding Note,
  Series 2010. For the prior fiscal year, total debt decreased by \$719,868 during the
  year due to principal reductions.
- The City had total revenues of \$12,876,304 for the year ended June 30, 2014 which includes: program revenues (charges for service) of \$6,459,676, operating grants and contributions of \$399,572, capital grants and contributions of \$372,000 and general revenues of \$5,645,056. The City had total expenses of \$11,538,075 for the year ended June 30, 2014. Comparatively, City had total revenues of \$13,244,205 for the year ended June 30, 2013 which includes: program revenues (charges for service) of \$6,561,190, operating grants and contributions of \$373,289, capital grants and contributions of \$631,173 and general revenues of \$5,678,555. The City had total expenses of \$12,244,093 for the year ended June 30, 2013.
- The City's total capital outlays were \$1,405,344 for the current fiscal year and \$4,176,364 for the prior fiscal year. For the Governmental Funds, capital outlays were \$674,322 for the current fiscal year and \$747,080 for the prior fiscal year. For the Proprietary Funds, capital outlays for the current fiscal year were \$1,131,023 and the prior fiscal year of \$3,429,288.

#### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#### Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components:

- Government-wide financial statements.
- Fund financial statements.
- Notes to the financial statements.

#### Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The statement of not position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, e.g., depreciation and earned but unused vacation leave.

The government-wide financial statements are divided into two categories, governmental and business-type activities. The governmental activities of the City include general government, administrative services, financial services, police, fire, public works, community development and cometery. The business-type activities of the City include water, wastewater, sewer collection and rehabilitation, sanitation, fiber optic services and related support departments which comprise the Utility Fund. The City does not have any component units, e.g., where the City has control over the income and expenses of the colity.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17 and 18 of this report.

#### Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources which have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

#### Governmental Funds

Most of the City's basic services are included in the governmental fund type. These funds use the modified accusal accounting basis, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to each. The general fund, special revenue funds and permanent funds are all governmental type funds.

#### Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds, in general, charge customers for the services that are provided. These funds use a long-term financial accounting approach, full accrual basis and provide additional information in the statement of cash flows.

#### Hotes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 27 through 60 of this report.

#### Government-wide Analysis

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34 reporting model was implemented in fiscal year 2004.

As noted earlier, net position may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by \$36,244,071 for the current fiscal year and \$35,096,401 at the close of the prior fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City's net position (85%) is its investment in capital assets, by an or taggest person of the City is not position (6272) is as investment in Geptal assets, e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Only the unrestricted net position of the City may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

-5-

2014

		2014	
	Chan	gas in Net Posi	tion
	•	Business-	
	Governmenta!	typa	
	Activities	Activities	Total
Reveases			
Program revenues			
Charges for services	\$ 1,073,708	\$ 5,385,968	\$ 6,459,676
Operating grants and contributions	399,572	,,	397,572
Capital grants and contributions	322,000	50,000	372,000
General reverses	224000	24,000	375,110
Property taxes	877,121	_	\$77,121
Occupational fees	1,941,492		1.941,492
Inguisticas rees	1,404,095		1,404,095
Franchise fees	109,226		100,226
Basiness Exense fees	605,816		605,816
	4,468	5,961	10,429
Interest income		106,950	465,711
Miscellaneous moorse	358,761	7,500	240,166
Gain on the sale of assets	232,666		240,100
Transfers	( 1,856,176)	1,856,176	
Total revenues and transfers	5,453,749	7,412,555	12,876,304
Expenses			
General government	1,769,979		1,769,979
Public safety	2,594,500		2,594,500
Public works	1,118,853		1.114,853
Comessativ and cultural	723,932		723,932
	156,222	163,379	319,601
Interest expense on long-term dobt	130,222	3,539,931	3,539,931
Water and wastewater		941,919	941,919
Sanitation	_	529,360	529,360
Fiber Optic	/	329,300	349.360
Total capeases	6,36),4\$6	5,174,589	11,533,075
Change in set position	( \$99,737)	2,237,965	1,338,229
Net position, beginning of year	16,491,127	18,695,274	35,096,401
Change in accounting principle-			
GASB#65	(28,474)	(162,085)	
Net position, end of year	5_15.472.916	\$ 20,771,155	<b>1</b> _36.241.071

		2014 Net Position	
	Governmental Activities	Business- type Activities	Total
Current and other assets Capital assets	\$ 7,116,715 	\$ 4,697,224 	\$ 11,813,939 36,377,744
Total assets	<u>\$ 21,326,925</u>	\$ 26.854.758	<u>\$48,191,683</u>
Long-term liabilities outstanding Other liabilities	\$ 5,283,832 570,171	\$ 5,551,174 670,726	\$ 10,835,006 
Total liabilities	\$_5,854,0 <u>09</u>	<u>5 6,221,900</u>	<u>\$ 12,075,902</u>
Net position Invested in capital assets, not of related debt Restricted	\$ 12,633,608 1.033.588	\$ 17,745,678 1,193,143	\$ 30,379,286 2,226,731
Unrestricted	1,805,720	1,832,334	3.638.054
Total set position	<u>\$ 15.472.916</u>	\$ 70,771.155	<u>\$ 16,244,071</u>
		2013 Net Position	
	Governmental Activities	Business- type Activities	Total
Current and other assets Capital assets	\$ 8,408,953 14,038,498	\$ 2,710,331 	\$ 11,119,284 _36,767,103
Total assets	<u>\$.22.447,451</u>	\$ 25.41R.936	\$ 47.836.357
Loog-term liabilities outstanding Other liabilities	\$ 5,620,379 425,945	\$ 5,852,593 881,159	\$ 11,482,8#2 1,307,104
Total Eabilities	<u>\$ 6,046,324</u>	\$ 6,743,652	\$ 12.789.916
Net position freested in capital assets, net of related debt	\$ 12,255,726	\$ 17,684,831	\$ 29,940,557
Restricted Unrestricted	1,031,159 3,1 <u>14.242</u>	1,338,685	2,369,244 2,786,600

2014

1,338,655 327,642) \$ 16,491,127 \$ 18,695,274 \$ 35,096,401

The City's revenues are largely comprised of charges for services through utility revenue, occupational payroll fors and insurance fees.

Total net position

	2013				
	Changes in Net Position				
	num.	Business-			
	Governmental	type			
	Activities	Activities	Total		
Revenoes					
Program revenues					
Charges for services	\$ 1.057.653	\$ 5,503,527	\$ 6,561,190		
Operating grants and contributions	373,289		373,289		
Capital grants and contributions	178,000	453,173	631,173		
General revenues					
Property taxes	851,520	_	851,520		
Occupational fees	2,195,926		2,195,926		
Insurance premium fees	1,426,743		1,426,743		
Franchise foes	93,281		93,281		
Business license fees	471,685		471,685		
Interest income	5,991	10,847	16,838		
Miscellaneous income	369,349	232,558	691,907		
Gain on the sale of assets	5,771	14,132	20,653		
Transfers					
Total revenues and transfers	7,029,218	6,214,987	13,244,205		
Expenses					
General government	1,706,532	_	1,706,532		
Public safety	2,489,314	_	2,489,314		
Public works	1,605,609	_	1,005,609		
Community and cultural	478,385	_	478,186		
Interest expense on long-term debt	178.370	165,673	344,043		
Water and wasteraster	_	3.870.752	3,870,752		
Sanitation		1,192,651	1,192,651		
Fiber Optic		3\$1,859	381,859		
Total expenses	5,858,211	5.610,965	11,469,176		
Change in act position	1,171,007	604,022	1,775,029		
Net position, beginning of year	15,239,120	_18,091,252	33.321.372		
Net position, end of year	<u>\$ 16,401,127</u>	\$ 18,695,274	<u>\$_15,096,401</u>		

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

#### Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendish resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for speeding for program purposes at the end of the fiscal vers.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported an eoding fund balance of \$2,988,673 compared to \$4,312,637 for the prior fiscal year. The City's major sources of revenues are insurance premium fees, payroll occupational fees and property taxes. The fund balances primarily represents the accumulation of revenues in excess of expenditures not reimbursed by funding sources.

### General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were approximately 5177,023 decrease in revenue and \$99,975 increase in appropriations which can be briefly summarized as follows:

- In Fiscal Year 2013 the City received a \$500,000 Community Development Block Grant and \$175,000 of those monies were expended and transferred into the General Fund to reimburse for the purchase and clearup of several parcels of land. The remaining balance, of \$375,000, was budgeted in the General Fund; however, in order to comply with accounting standards, the revenue recognition of these funds was transferred out of the General Fund and into the City's Community Development Fund.
- Insurance fees were slightly stronger than anticipated in the original budget.
   Additionally the City's Alcohol Beverage Control income was much stronger
  than anticipated. Occupation fees were slightly increased during the budget
  revision, however, actual reported revenue was down approximately \$100,000.
   This is simply a revenue recognition timing issue, as some quarterly activity
  was recognized across two fiscal years.
- Legislative contractual services were up higher than budgeted. The City sold
  two treets of land in this fiscal yeer and the selling expenses were budgeted in
  this category, however, for accounting recognition purposes, this was netted
  against land sales, recognized in Miscellaneous Revenue. Therefore, this
  versince is merely a classification issue between budgeting techniques and
  accounting standards.
- Risk management expenses were increased as a result of the City's unanticipated need for specialized legal counsel.
- The Police Department experienced a year of significant personnel turnover and promotional advances. As a result, the personnel budget reflected significant variances, as this turnover and subsequent promotions were unanticipated.

-9.

Major capital asset purchases during the current fiscal year include the following:

- Capital expenditures of \$67,000 for the standardization of technology City Wide including the acquisition of new computers, servers, and wiring to convert to Voice Over IP for city phone services.
- Capital expenditure of \$45,571 for construction costs of Fiber Optic network.
- Czpiral expenditures of \$54,370 to install a new roof on the Water Treatment Plant.
- Capital expenditures of \$486,856 for improvements and additions to the City's water and waste water system.
- Capital expenditures of \$38,329 for equipment and vehicles for the City's water and waste water system.
- Equipment used by Street department of \$26,914.
- Vehicles for the Public Works Department \$24,480.
- Cruisers for the Police Department \$134,273.
- Acquisition of Land and Related Improvements of \$384,415.
- Capital expenditures of \$18,685 for improvements and additions to the City's storm water infrastructure.

Major capital asset purchases during the prior fiscal year include the following:

- Capital expenditure of \$869,701 for design, make ready and construction costs of Fiber Optic network.
- Capital expenditures of \$349,570 for improvements and additions to the City's water and waste water system.
- Capital expenditures of \$263,040 for equipment and vehicles for the City's water and waste water system.
- Equipment used by Street department of \$27,691.
- Cruisers for the Police Department \$117,291.
- Acquisition of Land and Related Improvements of \$532,687
- Capital expenditures of \$62,971 for improvements and additions to the City's storm water infrastructure.

Additionally, the budget for Contractual Fire Services reflected a variance between budget versus actual. This was a result of the City's failure to increase the budget properly to reflect renegotiated rates for this service.

- The City's Public Works department reflects a variance related to contractual
  services. This is a result of the City's expectation to receive reimbursement of
  in-kind expenses related to the Community Development Block Grant
  discussed above in the amount of \$35,000. When the grant was concluded and
  all costs were consolidated, the funding was not available for this
  reimbursement.
- There is a budget to actual variance in "Other Financing Sources (Uses)." This
  is due to an unbudgeted, although enticipated, refinancing of a note payable.
  This note was refinanced in January 2014 to a three year note.

Total revenues for the year were right on target, in total, with final budgetary estimates while expenses were slightly higher than final budgetary estimates. There was an excess of expenditures over revenues primarily releted to manifelipted changes in transactions within the City, all of which are discussed above. There was an overall net decrease in Fund Balance, of \$1,332,087. This relates to the increased expenditures as discussed above and an unbudgeted transfer of funds between the General Fund and Fiber Fund, to cover the deficit reflected within the Fiber Fund.

#### Proprietary Funds

Operating revenues of the City's proprietary funds decreased 2.14% from the prior year to \$5,385,968. The City kept rates static for the year, with the exception of a 2.7% cost of living increase in the Santation Fund, pursuant to the City's garbage hudier contract. Operating revenues from Water and Wassewater increased by 1.40% to \$4,346,810 while operating revenues from Santation services decreased 21.87% to \$914,816. The Fiber Optic services began its third year of providing services with revenues of \$124,342. Total operating expenses decreased 6.17% to \$5,082,051. Operating expenses for Water & Wassewater decreased by 6.01% to \$3,610,772 while operating expenses for Santiation services decreased by 21.02% to \$941,919. This decrease relates directly to the structure of the garbage haufer contract, the current garbage haufer bills commercial customers. Fiber Optic service expenditures were \$529,360 compared to \$181,889 from the trior year.

#### Capital Asset and Debt Administration

#### Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2014, the City's investment in capital assets net of related debt for its governmental and business-type activities was \$30,379,286 and \$29,940,557 as of June 30, 2013. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and professer and strotts.

-10-

#### Long-term Debt

The City had \$10,256,457 in revenue bonds and capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2014, which is a decrease of \$747,19 from the previous year. The City made principal payments of \$505,000 during fiscal year 2014. The City refunded its 2010 General Obligation Refunding Note in the amount of \$3,544,903. The City issued \$3,572,008 in a General Obligation Refunding note to refused its outstanding Note, Series 2010. In the previous year, the City had \$11,004,176 in revenue bonds and capital teach obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2013, which is a decrease of \$719,868 from the previous year. The City made principal payments of \$835,262 during fiscal year 2013.

### Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of \$2,988,673 at June 30, 2014, excluding capital assets and long-term debt. Included in this year's total change in fund balance is a decrease of \$1,322,687 in the City's General Fund. For the previous year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of \$4,312,637 at June 30, 2013, excluding capital assets and long-term debt. Included in last year's total change in fund balance was an increase of \$243,565 in the City's General Fund.

#### Modified Approach to Infrastructure

The condition of the City's roads is determined using its Road Management and Inspection Program (RMIP). The road condition is rated from 1 to 100 (OCI), with 100 being new or recordly nearly.

It is the City's policy to assess the condition of the roads annually for cracks, potholes, misalignment, drainage condition and number of specific safety hazards. There were no roads severely deficient in condition at June 30, 2014.

The City has not changed the measurement scale used to assess and report the condition of its roads for the past  $10~\mathrm{years}$ .

The City's goal is to have all roads at 90-100 OCI rating.

Eligible infrastructure assets are not depreciated, additions and improvements thereto are capitalized and all other outlays made for such assets are expensed in the period incurred only if requirements regarding asset management system and preservation at condition level are met.

#### Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

In 2003 the City of Franklin was awarded a \$1,000,000 grant from the U.S. Department of Commerce, Economic Development administration to add in the costs of the construction of a fiter optic project. The purpose of the project is to enhance economic development and City services by providing a reliable, advanced telecommunication service. During fiscal year 2011-2012, the City contracted for the purchase and installation of equipment, the construction of the fiber cable and the splicing and testing of the system. As of June 30,

2014, the construction was complete, the program was operating within its second year, and the program reflected total investment in capital assets, including infrastructure, buildings and equipment, of \$2,501,249. The City began offering its Fiber Services in May 2013 and is now servicing 38 customers.

The City is really operating within a time of change and anticipated growth. The City's Leaders have spent a lot of time and effort focusing on the sustainability of the City's the city is really operating wittin a time of change and anticipated growth. The City's infrastructure, such as what capital investments are required to maintain and rehabilitate our current infrastructure as well as what areas of growth there are that the city reeds to expand our existing water and sewer systems. In Fiscal Year 2014 the City kield off an in-depth Utility Rate Shudy where we analyzed the pressing needs of each department within our Utility Division. Water Production, Water Distribution, & Waste Water Treatment. Within this study we identified all capital investments necessary to rehabilitate the City's current water and sewer lines, its treatment plants, and related equipment. Each Department Head identified areas of need and these capital improvements were incorporated into this study so the City could adequately identify the most pressing areas of infrasts need. The Utility Real Shudy was incredibly valuable from many different perspectives, from infrastructure needs, to equipment needs, to a more detailed analysis of our revenue base and related operating expenditures. Subsequent to year end, the City concluded this study and utilizately adopted a five year capital improvement plan, as well as identified annual finercial resources to be allocated to each department for infrastructure rehabilitation and line replacements. This study effectively correlated our needs and the related financial impact and identified the need for a utility rise increase. The City's elected body decided to implement these rates increases in gradual, incremental amounts, over a five year period, in efforts not to overly burden the City's customer base. These rate changes were adopted by Ordinance in February 2015.

Below is a brief summary of some of the areas of expansion and rehabilitation that the City has identified thus far:

- The City is currently executing a project related to the expansion of its existing sewer lines. This project will provide service to an area that was annexed into the City south of Franklin in fiscal year 2013, extending all the way to the KY/IN line, well past Exit 2 on Interstate 65. This project, including all engineering work, has an estimated project cost of \$600,000.
- The City's Waste Water Treatment Department has identified a lift station and
  sub-basin that needs significant rehabilitation work. The expectation is that this
  investment and improvement will decrease some of the water's run off infiltration
  into the sewer systems as well as improve the overall systems operating capacity
  for the citizens using the sewer system within that sub-basin. This project,
  including all engineering work, has an estimated project cost of \$660,000 to
  \$700,000.
- The City has experienced some growth toward the South of Franklin, related to its recent ancexation of Isad all the way to the KYVIN line. There are also expectations that the south area of Franklin will experience significant growth and expansion over the next several years. The City's analysis indicates that the

-13-

and the lots cleared of all material and debris. There are currently eight properties which have been condemand and are pending action, and another eight properties which are currently in the condemnation process. These actions are the result of a combined effort by the City's Code Enforcement Officer and the City/County Planning and Zoning Office.

- For the past several years, City management has identified the need for the City to
  relabilitate its stormwater system. City's stormwater system is provided to
  protect the waterways and land in the City of Franklin by managing flooding and
  to benefit the natural environment. The City felt as if the cost of designing,
  developing, improving, operating, maintaining, and monitoring the stormwater
  system required in the City of Franklin should therefore be allocated to the extent system required in the City of Franklin should therefore be allocated to the extent practicable to all property owners and/or occupants of land based on their impact on the stormwater system. In order to provide revenue to find those costs and to fairly allocate those costs, a Stormwater Management Fund was established and adopted into Ordinance, to be implemented effective July 1, 2015. All revenues collected for the purpose of stormwater management from user fees, greats, permit fees, and other charges collected under this program, will be deposited into this fund and all disbursements from the Fund will be for the purposes of the following.
  - The acquisition by gift, purchase, or condemnation of real property, and interests therein, necessary to construct, operate, and maintain stormwater management facilities.
  - stormwater management facilities.

    All costs of administration and implementation of the stormwater management program, including the establishment of reasonable operation and capital reserves to meet budgeted, unanticipated or emergency stormwater management requirements.

    Engineering and design, debt service and related financing expenses, construction costs for new facilities, and enlargement or improvement of original possibilities.
  - of existing facilities.

  - or existing accurates.

    Operation and maintenance of the stormwater system.

    Moritoring, surveillance, and inspection of stormwater control
  - devices.

    Water quality monitoring and water quality programs.

    Retrofitting developed greas for pollution centrol.

    Inspection and enforcement activities.

    Costs of public education related to stormwater and related issues.

    Billing and administrative costs.

  - Other activities which are reasonably required.
- In Fiscal Year 2013 the Frenklin-Simpson Industrial Authority entered into a project where Alliance Corporation will build a 60,000 square foot Spec Building in the Henderson Industrial park. The City agreed to provide in kind service by providing the labor and expertise needed to expand our existing sever lines into the Industrial Park in order to service this Spec Building. Once this project is complete the Industrial Park will have two verant buildings, one a large scale, move-in ready facility and one a smaller-scale move in ready facility. The hope is that these facilities will attract interest and provide for further industrial growth with the programment.

current size of the sewer line does not provide the capacity necessary to accommodate the kind of growth the City is anticipating. Therefore the City has begon reviewing and entering into preliminary engineering discussions regarding replacement of the current sewer lines, down the 31-W corridor, with newer, larger lines that will be able to handle and service any growth within that particular area of town. This project, including all engineering work, has an estimated project cost of \$9,000,000 to \$12,000,000.

- The City's Water Distribution Department is working within its third year of a The City's Water Distribution Department is working within its third year of a substantial water main replacement initiative. Currently, the City is working toward replacing all of its 2" galvanized water lines with new, sustainable water lines. The expectation is that the replacement of this old and correded line will provide better water service to the City's exostomers as well as reduce scene of the annual water loss that the City experiences. Additionally the City has begun replacing these lines in-house, rather than contracting the projects out. This allows the City to take advantage of its own synengy and cooperation among the City's departments, because what one department does always directly impacts another, therefore it provides for more intely reaction to any project related incidences. Additionally there is a major cost savings realized by completing the project in-house rather than paying a premium for contracted services.
- Along the same lines as the City's Water Distribution Water Line Replacement Along the Same interact as the City's water Institution, the City is currently reviewing its Waste Weter Collection System's maintenance and replacement needs with the intention of beginning to reserve funds, of approximately \$300,000 annually, for an annual maintenance and replacement initiative within the Wastewater Treatment Department.

Outside of the City's Water Utility Departments there are many areas of growth and expansion being experienced within the City. Below is some discussion regarding the most significant economic changes that are significantly impacting the City and our community as a whole:

- In September 2012, the City passed an Alcoholic Beverage Control Ordinance expanding the types of licenses for sale of alcoholic beverages. To date, fourteen mult beverage licenses have been issued, seven restaurant licenses have been issued and one application has been filed for a Distillery. The State of Kentucky has set the package liquor quota at three licenses. All three licenses have been issued and the package liquor stores are open and operational. With the changes in the City's Alcoholic Beverage Control Ordinance and our recent Amenastion south of Franklin, the City really expects to see future growth in the area, given its proximity to Interestate 65, in part relating to some high-end chain restaurants.
- · During Fiscal Year 2013, the City initiated a City-Wide Beautification Program. Duting recar lead 201, the child with the hiring of a full time Code Fofoverneat Officer, and has since been extremely proactive in the effort to make noticeable improvements to the City with regards to blighted and dilapidated structures. To date, twenty three blighted and dilapidated properties have been condemned by the City with thirteen of these properties having been subsequently demolished

.14

- There have been three industries within Franklin that have announced their plans There have been three industries within renation that they amonaced used pinds for expansion with one industry announcing its plan to locate within the City. Also, the Industrial Authority is seeing a significant increase in industries expressing interest in locating within one of the City's Industrial Parks. Additionally, a local construction company has announced their plans to build a subdivision within our City, targeting middle income, retirement aged citizens.
- Overall, all leaders within our community are excited for growth and expansion. The end result, primarily, is the desire for our community to have the capacity and availability to provide jobs to our citizens. City leaders a noting that several industrial management teams are shifting their workforce from temperary labor to full time labor which is interpreted as an overall sign of stabilization within our local economy. We are excited to see our community's unemployment rates maintain a stable level, rates increases slightly—from 6.1% in December 2013 to 6.7% in January 2014, however, this rate is well below the state rate of 8.3% or the national rate of 7.0%.

### Contacting the City's Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director, 117 West Cedar Street, P. O. Box 2805, Franklin, KY 42135.

### STATEMENT OF NET POSITION June 30, 2014

	Printery Government					
	Governmental	Governmental Barrens-type				
	Autrities	Authorises				
		•				
ASSETS						
Cush and cash oppivalents	\$ 1,602,234	\$ 2118184	\$ 3,720,413			
Certificates of deposit	437,945	_	437,945			
Receivables (net of all pasted for the lattices);			673.617			
Accresss	65,194	677,423				
Texts	157,272	_	157,232 3,661,333			
Notes	3,551,333		181.033			
Energy-eranceral	1:6,634	24,359	181,073			
Internal balances	19,351	( 19,351)	358,512			
Enverthey		351,512	17,595			
Programa in the second	11,175	6,820	11,272			
Restricted assets		523,775	823,33J			
Cery and cery eding proper	304,355		1,077,492			
Certificates of deposits	••	1,077,472	1,277,774			
Capital assets, see of accountined depreciation:		374,238	12,567,725			
Nonitoroxishin	12,193,437	21,245,333	23,255,555			
Depreciable capital assets	2,016,723		544.563			
Construction in progress		544.563	245,702			
		26.854,758	43.191.613			
Formi mesor's	21,335,915	25.834.133				
DEFT RED OUTFLOWS		128.297	123,297			
Deferred amount on referribing breeds						
LIMBUTHES	308.974	243,653	357,627			
Accounts provide	157,733	371,420	523,153			
Other secreed light falm	17,002	11,371	23,873			
Accreed interest payable	16,468	35.752	123,223			
Access vegin		2,630	2,033			
Uncarried revenues						
Naccurrent Lab Scient	_	348,413	348,413			
Customer deposits	11391	\$2248	101,639			
077B EAST-y	243,600	435,370	675,370			
Due within energen	5,632.741	4 677,143	9,709,334			
Designate Day (cc ) CH						
Total liabilities	5 854.059	6 221 900	[2,675,597]			
1 per Princes	2,21.122					
NET POSITION						
Net intermed in calculations	12,633,608	17,745,678	33,373,185			
Redricted for:	14,,					
Erroccaste:						
Highways and streets	216,027		216,007			
Debt service and capital activity	194,669	1,193,143	1,387,812			
Economic development	\$3,787	· –	13,767			
Ober purposa	38,686	_	34,486			
Ntompeniable	•					
Perpenditure	494,233		491,239			
Unestical	1,005,722	1,831,334	3,633,654			
America						
Total act position	\$ 15,472,916	<u>\$ 20.771,155</u>	<u> 36,244,071</u>			
	-					

See Notes to Financial Statements

-17-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES Year Ended June 30, 2014

			Province Review	•	Net zoi Ct	(Esperse) Rener Seaso in Not Posi	24 500
			Operation	Capital	Pr	ear Grane	ŧŧ
	Esperies.	Charges for Services	Oracis and Contributions	Gustanian Gustanian	Experimental Activities	Business type Activities	Test
fencice Programs  Primary Convences  Convenced activities  General programs  Pride sales  Pride sales  Pride sales  Convented pride activities  Convented pride activities  between on largenta debt	\$ 1,789,979 2,594,590 1,111,155 711,511 155,223	5 601,721 45,917 92,900 136,000	\$ 159,355 234,417 3,250	\$	(\$ 558,259) { 2318,659) { 772,059 ( 151,02) ( 155,220)		(\$ 549,258) ( 2,318,659) ( 791,498) ( 242,692) ( 156,292)
Total governmental autorites	630,415		399.572	122,009	(_459236)		(4591222)
Protectivity activities When and waste water Springles Fiber optic	3,733,319 \$41,519 575,359	4345,819 914,815 124,342				643,500 ( 27,133) ( 331510	643,530 ( 27,133) ( 353,648)
Total harisess-type existing	5.174.519	_ 1385%1		53,000		261.372	251.379
Total primary povernouses	1115103	េកធមរ	<b>2</b> 399513	177.000	(_4391X0		((FK)17
		Carrent on the Property to Consystems to Consystems to Registrate for Registrate for Manufacture Construction on price Transfers	es I tenes recipio tenes rese tenes res res		877,121 L541,422 L454,655 100,225 605,816 4,454 374,741 212,666 (1356,110)	5561 12650 7,520 1,156175	\$77,131 1,941,452 1,454,655 150,255 635,816 13,423 455,711 243,165
		Total gro	od exess ed t	ectors	1 668,459	1.575.547	5645656
		Charles in each	pesition		C139,2370	2.075%	1,011,023
		Na pozia, b	egianeg of you		15,431,117	11,653,214	31,056,471
		Cargo in sou	once principle—C	A53 155	(24.574)		(199357
		Net position, b	egissir g of you, स	2.62.5		15.533.112	34,935,842
		Maran San e	whetene		5, 15,472,916	\$ 20 771 155	5 35,244,071

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS June 30, 2014

	General	Nonmajor Governmental Figures	Total Governmental Funds
ASSETS	\$ 1.318,592	5 283.241	\$ £602,233
Cash and cash equivalents	3 1,518,392	437,945	437,946
Certificates of deposit		427,547	,
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):	57,444	8,750	66.194
Accounts	857.292	44124	857,292
Tales	3,61,333	_	3,651,333
Notes	23,782	132,852	155,634
Intergovernmental	207,818	50 993	259,531
Doe from other funds	10.691	484	11,175
Prepaid items	10,071	737	******
Restricted assets	233,556	71,000	304,556
Cash and each equivalents	213,370		304,163
रिन् <u>यो</u> क्षप्रदेव	<u> 6.370.978</u>	\$ 585,266	\$ 7,355,244
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND E	ALANCES		
Listerities			\$ 308,975
Accounts payable	\$ 307,440	S 1,535	239,531
Due to other funds	52,101	187,432	
Accrued expenses	157,732		157,732
Total Enhitries	517,273	188.965	706,231
Deferred inflows:			
Havalable revenue	3,(51,333		3.681.333
Fund balances			
Nonspendable:			
Prepaid figure	10,691	484	11,175
Percetual care	_	494,238	494,238
Assigned to:			
Debt service	191,669	-	194,669
Retirement benefits	29,372	-	29,372
Dyng enforcement	9,513	<del>-</del>	9,513
Other purposes	-	3/01,579	301,579
Unarriezed	<u>),948,127</u>	———— <del>—</del>	1,948,127
Total fund balances	2,192,372	795,301	2.985,673
Total hit Sairs, defenred believes and ford balan	tes <u>\$_6,370.978</u>	\$ <u>985,255</u>	\$ 7,356,241

#### RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION June 30, 2014

Fotal fixed balances - governmental funds		\$ 2,988,673
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Position are different because:	be Statement of Net	
Capital assets used in governmental activities are n and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.	ot financial resources	14,210,212
Some habilities are not due and payable in the therefore, are not reported in the fands:	current period and,	
Bonds and notes payable Compensated observes Accrued instruct on kon-term obligations OPER Habbity	(\$ 5,272,241) ( 85,468) ( 17,002) ( 11,591)	( 5.387,302)
Other long-term assets are not available to pay expendinges and, therefore, are deferred in the fur	for current period	3,661,333
Net position of governmental activities	si	<u>\$_15,472.916</u>

See Notes to Financial Statements

-20-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENF OF ACTIVITIES Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Total Governmental Funds
let change in final balances - total governmental funds	(\$ 1,323,964)
amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:	
Governmental finds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated seeful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.	426,593
The issuance of long-term debt provides current finuctial resources to governmental finds, while the repsymeet of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current finacial resources of governmental finds. Nother transaction, however, has any effect on set position. Also, governmental finds report the effect of premiums, discours as a similar trans when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This enverse is the ret effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related from.	350,468
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds;	
Compensated absences         \$ 4,985           OPEB expense         ( 13,920)           Account interest on long-term debt         24,353	15,418
Principal collections on notes receivable are included in govern- mental funds. Principal collections reduce long-term notes receiv- able in the government-wide statement of net position.	( 113,373)
In the statement of activities, only the gain on the disposal of assets is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the disposal increase framed the resources. Thus the change in net position differs from the change in fund balance by the net book	
value of the assets disposed.	(255.284)
Change in net position of governmental activities	( <u>\$899,717</u> )

See Notes to Financial Statements

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

## STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Year Ended June 30, 2014

1 cm ranca?	426 30, 1914		
		Nonentjor Governmental	Fore! Gevernmental
	Gran)	Fault	Fetds
Revenues			
Trace			
Property	\$ 877,121	\$ -	\$ 877,021
Occupational	1,941,492	-	1,941,492
Insurance premitura	1,404,055	4.0	1,494,095
Franchise	109,226		100,225
Business Econse	605,816		655,816
htergoverumental	190,729	554,139	744,858
Charges for sales and services	-	86,800	86,840
Entificial charges	839,614	-	839,614
Fixes and forfaixures	73,556	-	73,566
Contributions and densations	-	9,200	9,2(1)
Exestment income	1,264	3,114	4,378
MisceTanaceas			513.457
Total revenues	6,547,290	653.343	7.200,633
Expenditures			
Conect			
Gecard government	\$ 1,702,188	\$	\$ 1,702,183
Public safety	2,451,829		2,451,829
Public works	913,171	164,113	1,077,284
Constantly services	444,027	275,677	719,764
Capital outby	671,295	3,027	674,322
Debt sarvice:			
Principal	379,279	_	379,279
Littert	178.865	<del>-</del>	178,865
Total expenditures	6,740,654	442,817	7,183,471
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (trade) expenditures	[193,1640]	210.526	17.162
Other financing sources (uses):			
Transfers in	361,953	165,550	527,503
Transfers out	( 2,015,726)	( 367,953)	( 2,313,673)
Sale of capital assets	487,550	-	417,550
Proceeds from refunding boads	3,572,6%	-	3,572,008
Deta service - refrecting note principal	(3,544,938)		( 3.544,901)
Total other financing strates (uses)	(1,138,723)	(202,403)	( <u>i,341,126</u> )
Net change in fund behavers	( 1,332,087)	1,123	( 1,323,964)
First balances, beginning of year	3,574,459	788.178	4,312,637
First belonces, and of year	<u>5_2,192,372</u>	\$ 726,301	\$_2.911.673

See Notes to Financial Statements

-21-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

## STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS June 30, 2014

		Econos	Funds	
	Water and		Fiber	
	Williams	Sanitation	O <del>p</del> /	tcal
ASSETS				
Ourrect assets:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,815,524	\$ 302,660	s –	\$ 2,118,184
Atomats receivable, net	530,344	75.021	2,058	697,423
Interpovernmental receivables	24,359	· -	· -	24,369
Due from other famile	1,108	4,593	_	5,701
Inventory	358,512	_	-	358,512
Prepaid Rems	6,088	700	32	6,870
Restricted assets:	-			•
Cash and cash equivalents	523,775			523,775
Certificates of deposit	1.077,492	<del></del>		1.977,492
Total carect uses	4337.212	352,974	2.090	4.722.216
Noncorpera assets:				
Capital assets:				
Land	332,924	40.114	1,200	374.235
Depreciable capital assets, net	18,948,250	_	2,700,043	21,241,333
Construction in progress	544,963	<del>-</del>	=	511.953
Total Emergrent assets	19.826.177	40.114	2321,241	_27.167.535
Total assets	24,163,359	423,694	2302333	_26.859.810
DEFERRED OUTSLOWS				
Deferred amount on refunding bonds	128.297	S	<b>S</b>	\$ 128,297

## STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS June 30, 2014

	Exteriorise Funds							
	v	fater and				Гiber		
	Warren Street		****	Optic			Total	
LIABILITIES								
Carrent Exhibities:								
Accounts psychie	\$	149,267	5	98,745	S	643	5	745,653
Accroed thereines		60,477		306,117		4,826		371,420
Accessed interest		11,371		-		_		11,571
Accreed vacation		36,752						35,752
Due to other famils		25,052				_		25,052
Uneared revenue				-		2,030		2,030
Outena mataminies of potes payable		155,370				-		155,370
Proable from restricted assets								
Current magnifier of program box	Ťs.							
perable		280,000						260,000
Customer deposits		341,413		*:		. "	_	348,413
Tetal correct liabilities	_	1.067.202	_	404.853	_	7,496	_	1,479,551
Noncurrent liabilities:								
OPEB Estatey		48,636		41,612				90,248
Notes payable		285,765		-		-		286,765
Reverse boods payable		4,590,378						4,390,378
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	_							
Total concurrent liabilities	_	4,725,779	_	41.612			_	4.767.391
Total Facilities	_	5.792.981	_	446,475	_	7,456		6.245.952
NET POSITION								
Net investment in capital assets	- 1	5.404.321		40,114		2,301,243	1	7.745.678
Restricted for ooks service and		.,		,				,,
capital activity		1,193,143		_				1.193.143
Unrestricted		1.901.241	- 1	63,501)	ſ	5,400		1.832.334
5.31.31.44	_		-	/			_	-,
Total net position	Ł	8,498,705	ساف	23,387)	<u>s_</u>	2 295 837	1.3	0,771,155

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS Year Ended June 30, 2014

		Enterni	* P. T. S	
	Water and Water and	Zro.zz.za	F∆a Og€c	_Icsl
Cash Rows Reas eperating activities Cash received from customers Cash payments to employers and resires Cash payments to supplies Payments for activities or conduced	\$ 4,313,555 ( 1,297,275) ( 523,092) ( 530,111)	\$ 935,657 ( 12,000) ( 705,891) ( 209,502)	\$ 124,991 ( 136,845) ( 283,288)	\$ 5,375,204 ( 1,355,060) ( 1,912,271) (
Not cash provided by (used in) operating with item	1,683,131	9.166	(275,137)	1,397.263
Cash fa on from consequent flux chiq activities Proceeds from operating substitus Transfers in from other fluxis			53,690 333.666	52,000 333,666
Not much provided by necessital framing activities			383,666	353166
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities				
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets Prochase of capital assets Principal paid on bunds, edges and	7,550 ( 449,834)	-	( 88,529)	7,500 ( 529,363)
lease obligations Interest read on bonds, notes and	( 442,539)	_	-	( 442,585)
loue obligations Administrate for paid	( 176,283) [1135]	<u>:</u>		( 179,283) (1,126)
Not cash used in capital and related financing activities	(1,0(7,642)		( <u>88 577</u> )	(_1.35121)
Cash flows from investing arthrities Partheses of certificates of deposit Interest roots of	( 3,554) 5 843		=	( 3,554) 6235
Not each provided by investing artivities	2235	316		2671
Net increase is each and each equivalents	637,774	9,652	-	647,425
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year	1.771.525	293.654		L994,133
Cash ब्राजी तसकी क्षेत्रके संस्थाद, तार्जी की प्रश्नक	<u>5.2313,222</u>	\$ 372,660	<u> </u>	\$ 2,641,559
Reflected to the Statement of Food Net Pedison - Proprietary Funds as:				
Cash and cash equivalents Restricted cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,815,524 523,775	\$ 372,660	<u> </u>	\$ 2,188,184 523,775
Total	\$ 2339,272	\$_332,64Q	<u> </u>	\$ 2,641,559

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS Year Ended June 30, 2014

		Esterpris		
	Water and Wastewater	Smirston	Fiber Optic	<u>Tstal</u>
Operating reverses				
Charges for services	\$ 4,223,817	\$ 690,325	5 124,326	\$ 5,238,458
Fixes and forfeitures	122,993	24,491	16	147,500
Total opensing messes	4,346,810	914,416	124.342	5,385,969
Operating expenses				
Salaries, wages and benefits	1,238,563	21,925	137,731	1,398,619
Maintenance	215,159	710,454	173,819	1,679,451
Utilities	329,202	_	53,150	382,392
A distribution o	590,114	209,550		709,614
Sapties	256,823	· -	44,897	341,720
Ožer	22,278	-	3,130	25,408
Depreciation	1,005,242	=	116.593	1,124,835
Total operating expenses	3.610.772	941.919	529,350	5,0\$2,651
Operating income (loss)	735,038	(27.153)	(405.016)	303.917
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):				
lavestment income	5,575	385		5,961
intergovernmental revenue		-	50,030	50,000
Miscellaneous revenue	106,950	.~	••	106,959
Interest expense	( 88,371)			( 88,371)
Amortization expense	( 3.031)	**		( 3,031)
A deciristrative foca	( 1.135)	_	_	( ),136)
Gain on disposal of assets	7,550	<del></del>		7.533
Total nonoperating revenues	27.487		59,000	77.173
Income (loss) before transfers	763,525	( 26,717)	( 355,018)	381,750
Transfers in				1.856.176
Charge in not position	763.525	(26,717)	1.501.151	2237,966
Net position, beginning of year	17,897,265	3,330	794,679	18,695,274
Carrege in accounting principle - GASB 665	( <u>182,635</u> )	=		(
Net position, beginning of year, restate	4 _17.735,152	3.330	794,679	_18,533,189
Net position, and of year	\$ 18,498,705	(5 23.317)	\$ 2.295.837	\$ 20,771,155

See Notes to Financial Statements

-24-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED) Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Escapsia: Funds							
		ra Ed				Filer		
	- 9	552 × 507	_5.	en union	-	0.00	-	Total
Reconsiliation of operating income (loss) to not east								
provided by (exed in) operating activities:								
Operating income (loss)	5	735,039	(\$	27,193)	(\$	455.018)	5	303,917
All streams to recoverie oversing income								
(Loss) to set cash provided by (road in)								
operating activities								
Depreciation		1,001,242		_		116,593		1,124,835
Nonesperating revenues		105,950		_		-		106,559
Change in assets and Earlieries:								
(Crorrase) decrease in accounts receivable	{	66,857)		21,142		643	(	41,346)
(buyese)dooresse in dee from other fash	ı i	1,109)		4,651				3,542
harrane in his making and prepaid fears	(	\$5,643)		_	-{	16)	(	81,653)
hercese (forresse) in accounts payable	(	64,631)		3,757	(	8.243)	(	69,115)
horase (feurase) in storasi Exhibities	-	9,426	(	3,6(4)		\$ 92		6,512
increase in accreted vacation		8,701		_		-		8,701
Increase in customer deposits		15,290		_				15,290
Learnase in due to other funds		6,114		-		-		6,314
Lorence in OFEB Ind-Dity	-	13 614	_	9,925	_		-	23,53,2
Not make provided by (mod in)								
operating activities	5	1.683.131	\$	9.745	(\$_	_255,137)		1397.260

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 36, 2814

#### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Franklin, Kentucky (City) is a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The City operates under a Commission-Manager form of government. The City provides a full range of municipal services including general government services, police and fire protection, public works, parks and recreation, and consetery operations. In addition, the City owns and operates a water and sewer system.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial repeting. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below.

#### A. Reporting Entity

The accompanying government-wide financial statements present the financial statements of the City. There are no component units, legally separate entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Accountability is defined as the City's substantive appointment of the majority of the component unit's governing board. Furthermore, to be financially accountable, the City must be able to impose its will upon the component unit or there must be a possibility that the component unit may provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City.

#### Related Organizations and Jointly Governed Organizations

A related organization is en entity for which a primary government is not financially accountable. It does not impose will or have a financial benefit or burden relationship, even if the primary government appoints a voting majority of the related organization's governing benefit Based on these criteria, the Electric Plant Board and the Housing Authority of Franklin are considered related organizations of the City.

-27-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

include: (a) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or identifiable activity, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital and (b) gains into of a particular program or identifiable activity. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions.

### Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds. Separate statements for each fund – governmental and proprietary are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and major enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All other governmental and enterprise funds, if any, are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

#### Fund Accounting

The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A find is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance of current financial resources. The City has presented the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law, ordinance or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement costs that are not pied through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A revioual government or other multi-governmental arrangement is governed by repre A regional government or other multi-governmental strangement is governed by teper-sentatives from each of the governments that created the organization, but it not a joint venture because the participants do not retain an engoing financial interest or responsibility. Based on these entirent, the Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority, Franklin-Simpson Planning and Zoning Commission, and Franklin-Simpson Planning and Zoning Adjustment Board are considered jointly governed organizations of the

#### Joint Ventures

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that return into a constitution agreement and that is owned, operated, or governed by two or more participates as a seperate activity subject to joint control, in which the participates retain (a) an ongoing financial interest or (b) an ongoing financial responsibility. Based on these criteria, the Franklin-Simpson Parks Board and the Simpson County 911 Advisory Board are considered joint ventures of the City.

#### R. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund financial statements as follows:

#### Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the nonfidoxiary activities of the City. Fiduciary activities are exchaded from the government-wide statements because they cannot be used to support the City's own programs. As a general rule, the effect of interfinal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities are the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through trace, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees tharged to external parties. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses are those that are clearly associated with a specific function or identifiable activity is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are not be specifically identified to a particular function are charged to funds based on time spent for that function and are included in the functional categories. Program revenues

-28-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Jane 30, 2014

### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

### Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes. The City's four necessary special revenue funds account for specific revenues that are restricted to expenditures for operating the Greenlawn-Shady Rest Cemetery (Greenlawn-Shady Rest Cemetery Fund), governmental boosing, community and economic development projects (Community) Development Funds), public works (Municipal Aid Funds), and economic development activities (Economic Development Manufactures). Revolving Loan Fund).

### Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to allow only the earnings and not the principal to be used for purposes that support the reporting government's programs. The City reports two normality pertament funds (Francis Harris Cemetery Perpetual Fund and Greenlawn-Shady Rest Cemetery Perpetual Fund) which account for assets beld in trust for the permanent maintenance and beautification of Greenlawn-Shady Rest cemetery.

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as either enterprise or internal service.

#### Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determinations or revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for eaptial maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. The City reports the following major enterprises funds: following major enterprise funds:

### Water and Wastewater Fund

The Water and Wastewater Fund accounts for the operations of the City's water and wastewater system.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

#### Sanitation Fund

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the operations of the City's sanitation system.

#### Fiber Optic Fund

The Fiber Optic Fund accounts for the operations of the City's fiber optic

#### C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

#### Government-wide and Proprietary Funds

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all astest and all litabilities including long-term assets, as well as long-term debt and obligations, are included in Statement of Net Position. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

In proprietury funds, operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the principal ongoing operations of the fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating items. When both restricted and uncestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources which ensures as they are needed.

Noneschange transactions, in which the City receives (or gives) value without directly giving (or receiving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and similar items and docations. Recognition standards are based on the characteristics and classes of nonexchange transactions. Revenues from property taxes are recognized in the period in which the taxes are levied. Franchise fees, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures are recognized as revenues, not of estimated refueds and uncollectible amounts, in the accounting period when an enforceable legal claim to the assets arises and the use of resources is required or is first permitted. Grants, entitlements and docations are recognized as revenues, not of estimated uncollectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

-31-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

#### D. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

#### Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be eash equivalents. At Imme 30, 2014, eash equivalents consisted primarily of certificates of deposit and short-term instruments with local financial institutions.

#### Receivables and Payables

Activity between finds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the carrent portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the zen-current portion of interfund leans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lies on property as of favoury 1 each year. Property values are assessed on January 1 of each year, taxes are levied annually by ordinance and are payable on December 31. The City bills and collects its own property taxes. City property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that they are both measurable and available.

#### Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximate market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of inventory items are recognized as expenditures or expenses when used.

#### Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vecalors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Amounts received before all eligibility requirements have been met are reported as deferred revenues. Grants and similar aid to other organizations are recognized as expenses as soon as recipients have met all eligibility requirements. Amounts paid before all eligibility requirements have been next are reported as prepaid items.

#### Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in spendable resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the government activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures and proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other financing sources. Under the modified accreal basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when both measurable and available. The City considers revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if they are collectible within 90 days after year end. Principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include taxes, licenses and investment earnings. Other revenues are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, chima and judgments, compensated absences and obligations for worker's compensation, which are recognized as expenditures when payment is due. Pension expenditures are recognized when amounts are due to a plan.

The City reports uncerned revenue on its combined balance sheet. Uncerned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Uncarned revenue also arises when resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to them. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for uncarned revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

-32-

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

#### Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their payment, are classified as restricted assets on the brlazce sheet since their use is limited by applicable board indentures. Construction furd eccounts are used to report proceeds of general obligation and revenue bonds and notes that are restricted for use in construction and capital acquisitions. Deprociation and Maintenance accounts are the resources set aside to provide reasonable reserves for rerewals, replacements, improvements, extensions, extraordinary major repairs and contingencies related to bood obligation projects. Sinking Fund accounts are the resources accumulated for debt service payments.

#### Investments and Investment Income

Investments include certificates of deposit or government obligations carried at fair value. Investment income includes interest income and the net change for the year in the fair value of investments carried at fair value.

### Unbilled Revenue

The City bills customers for water and sewer services after usage based upon meter readings made during the month. The City records a receivable for unbilled revenue at June 30 for usage for which bills have not been sent.

#### Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the government-wide financial statements and the food financial statements for proprietary foods. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donasted capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

The City maintains a capitalization threshold of \$2,000. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital assets, excluding infrastructure, are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

	1143
Utility plant	25 - 50
Building and improvements	25 - 40
Fundane and equipment	10
Vehicles	4

The City utilizes the modified approach for reposting eligible infrastructure assets. Eligible infrastructure assets are not depreciated, additions and improvements thereto are capitalized and all other outlays made for such assets are expensed in the period incurred only if requirements regarding asset management system and preservation at condition level are met.

Depreciation expense is charged directly to the department/function based on the department that utilizes the related asset.

#### Compensated Absences

The City grants vecation and sick pay to all full-time employees based on length of service time. The cost of vecation and sick pay is accrued when earned in the government wide and proprietary fund financial statements and reported as accrued liabilities. In fund financial statements, only amounts that are expected to be liquidated with available financial resources are reported as expenditures and included in secrued liabilities.

#### Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other keng-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the columns for governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are amerized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bends payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Debt issuance costs are reported as expenses effective for the period ended June 30,

-35-

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

 Unassigned fund balance—emounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only in the General Fund.

The City Commission establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund (such as for special incentives). Assigned fund balance is established by City Commission through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes).

The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.

#### Net Position

In the government-wide statements, the difference between the City's total assets and total liabilities represents not position.

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the exquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on them are either externally imposed by creditors, granters, contributors or laws and regulations of other governments or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

#### E. Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

#### Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and producing and delivering goods arafor services. It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to capital and related financing, non-capital financing, or investing activities.

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 1914

#### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the unnert period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

#### Linearned Revenu

The City defers revenue recognition for assets recognized before revenue recognition criteria has been satisfied.

Grants and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are unearned. In addition, in governmental fund financial statements, notes and lease receivables at fiscal year-end are recorded as unearned revenue because potential revenue does not meet the "available" criteria for recognition in the current period.

#### Fund Balance Classification

The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

- Nonspendable fund balance—amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory) or are required to be maintained intact.
- Restricted fund balance—amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.
- Committed fund balance—emounts constrained to specific purposes by the City
  itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., City
  Commission). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any
  other purpose unless the City takes the same highest level action to remove or
  change the constraint.
- Assigned fund balance—amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose.
   Intent can be expressed by the City Commission or by an official or body to which the City Commission delegates the authority.

-36-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

## NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

### Interfund Activity

Transfers between governmental and proprietary activities on the government-wide statements are reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller fonds and as expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as intrifund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after monoperating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements.

### F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expanses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

### G. Budgetary Information

#### Budget Policy

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue, and enterprise funds. A budget is not prepared for the City's permanent funds annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

#### Legal Compliance

All agencies of the City submit requests for appropriation to the City manager so that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function and activity, and includes information on the part year, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Before June 1<sup>8</sup>, the proposed budget is presented to the City Commission for review. The City Commission holds public hearings to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to July I, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted announts between departments within any fund, however, any revisions that after the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Commission. During the year, several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

#### Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

The following funds that have budgets adopted annually had excess expenditures over appropriations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014:

General Fund	<u>\$_127.594</u>
Community Development Fund	S546
Sanitation Fund	\$27,943

Fund excess expenditures were funded by available net assets.

#### Fund Deficits

The Greenlawn-Shady Rest Cemetery Fund had a deficit fund balance at June 30, 2014 of 53,730. The deficit is a result of lower than anticipated revenues for support of cemetery operations.

#### NOTE 2. DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN

#### Denosite

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure a government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of state law.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; letters of credit issued by federal home loan banks; bonds, notes, letters of credit order obligations of the U. S. Treasury, U. S. agencies or instrumentalities or the state of Kentucky; bonds of any city of the first, second, and third classes, county, school district or educational institution of the state of Kentucky; or surely bonds having an aggregate current face value or current quoted market value at least equal to the amount of the deposits in excess of amounts insured by the FDIC.

-39

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 2. DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City's funds must be diversified by security type and institution with the exception of fully insured or fully collateralized investments and except for authorized investment pools, no more than 30% of the City's total investment portfolio shall be invested in a single security type or with a single financial institution. At Iune 30, 2014, 100% of the City's investments were in U. S. Obligation Mottan Funds.

### Summary of Carrying Values

Incl

The carrying values of deposits and investments shown above are included in the balance sheets as follows:

(Tu) if a seco:	
Depos 4s	\$ 5,400,605
Investments	653,592
	\$ 6,0 <del>6</del> 1,187
luded in the following balance sheet captions:	
Coveragent-wide Statement of Net Assets	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 3,720,418
Certificates of deposit	437,946
Restricted assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$28,331
Certificates of deposit	_1,077,492
Total	\$ 6.054.187
Investment Income	
In estraent income for the year ended June 30, 2014	
consisted of:	
Interest and dividend income	<u>10.429</u>

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### NOTE 2. DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN (Continued)

At June 30, 2014, \$4,325,168 of the City's bank balances of \$5,345,475 were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows, while \$1,020,307 was tovered by the FDIC:

Uninsured and collateral held by pledging financial

\$ 4.325,168

#### Investments

In accordance with Kentucky Revised Statutes (KRS) 66.480, the City may legally invest in obligations of the U. S. Treatryr, U. S. agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations subject to repurchase agreements, bankers acceptances, commercial paper, obligations of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and its agencies and instrumentalities, shares of mutual funds or interest bearing deposits of insured national or state banks.

At June 10, 2014, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Interest Rate Risk - The City recognizes that some level of risk is inherent in any investment transaction. Losses may be incurred due to issuer default, market price changes, or closing investments price to miturity due to unanticipated cash flow needs. While the City has adopted an investment policy that recommends controlling interest rate risk through maturity diversification, the policy states that unless matched to a specific cash flow need, the City's funds should not, in general, be invested in securities maturing more than ten years from the date of purchase.

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. It is the City's policy to limit its investments in securities issued by a state or local government or any U. S. agency instrumentality to the top three ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). At fune 39, 2014, investments in U. S. agency obligations not directly guaranteed by the U. S. government were rated AAA by Standard & Poor's.

-40-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 3. NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable at June 30, 2014 consists of the following:

#### General Fand:

Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority promissory note receivable, dated December 3, 2010; receivable in 240 monthly installment of \$33,333, including interest at 7,95%; secured by real estate mortage.

\$ 3,661,333

#### NOTE 4. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The City's restricted assets are as follows as of June 30, 2014:

		Confidences of Dept. 41	Energy Parababba	_Icsi
Gererantestal activities:				
Control Fand			_	
Parime Life flood	\$ 29,373	\$	s –	\$ 23,313
Police fired	9,513	_	-	9,513
Cay of Frankin 1999 Band Fast				194573
Total Greeni Fard	233,555	-	-	213,5%
Special Restante Fund				
Community Development	71.000	=	<del></del>	71.000
Total grownstal and then	224,555			33556
Basis cus type servities:				
Estropias Ford				
Water and Water King tends.				
Contract Apply 6	54,852	353,242		475,124
Debt service reserve	458517	176,232	_	715,145
Departure reserve	_	215,542	-	215,541
Militar and replacement stores		142,436	=	1 02.456
Total hastern-type and hist	523,775	1 677,452	_	169139
then corporatible terraces				
Total restricted musts	\$ F25 331	<u>5   1 0 77 492</u>	<u> </u>	L.19832}

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

	Bulares June 30, 2743	between	Period_	Britanie Jure 37, 2714
Communicated activities:	7200 39, 2753	COLUMN .	145100	74637.4714
Carried mosts and being depreciated				
Lacat	\$ 1,334,565	\$ 387,442	(\$ 141,113)	1,557,511
Strang and pidewalks	12,577 114			_10013
Total capital assets, not being dependenced	11.521.549	425 122	(141.112)	12.193.437
Capital exacts being deprecised:				
Buildings and improvements	2,093,569	_	( 148,970)	1544,612
Vehicles	1,151,525	151,753	( 12,000)	2,604,273
Fundace, finture and equipment		139,441	=	1 439 003
Tetal capital assets, being depreciated	5,793,763	269 194	[153 \$78)	5397.598
Loss accountated depreciation.				
Ratings and improvements	( (:4,251)	( 47,617)	34,812	( (11,031)
Yek:des	( 1,529,335)	( 117,237)	12,000	( 1,614,565)
Farafice, federes and equipment	(	( <u>u</u> m		(
Tutal successions deposit atom	(3172793)	(247,326)	45.132	(3371235)
Total copical access, being depreciated, act	2 179 549	22.172	(114 (%4)	2 0 15 723
Governmental activities capital seach, not	\$ 14,534,658	\$ 424,997	(\$ 255,785)	\$ 14,218,213
Business type a crivines:				
Capital many out being depreciated				
Laci	\$ 374,235	t	5 -	\$ 374.231
Construction in progress	49 04	531,310	(49,310	5415/3
		***		
Total capital ameta, not being depreciated	191677	59.3:2	(452,781)	919201
Capital assets being depreciated:				
Urlish plans	37,575,193	586,384	( 92,554)	31,069,719
Balfings	445,875			441,873
Fuzziare and equipment	3,559,184	31,329	{ 21,159)	3,575,624
Vehicles	578,612	5,000	35,742)	547,273
Last improvements	16366			15395
Total capital assets being deprocisted	42 175 835	629,713	( <u>139.65</u> )	42 655 858
Less secretal and depreciation				
United plant	( 17,632,000	( 159,397)	92,565	( 11,445,543)
Putteres	( 134319)	9,646)	-	( 1(4,242)
Furniture and equipment	( 2,210,755)	222,565)	21,649	( 2,411,441)
Vehales	( (23,251)	( 41,139)	35,742	( 434,641)
Land Improvements	(350	(1951)		( <u>1.697</u> )
Total accessional depreciation	(23,433 192)	UMBŊ	159,456	(71.437.521)
Fortal capital acress, being depractized, and	21.743,454	(455 122)		_2129311
विकारक स्थाप कर्मा देश स्थापी स्थाप करा	1 22 606 125	\$15153	(1 <u>, 40,311)</u>	\$ 22,157.334

-43-

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

	Balance <u>Jane 30, 2013</u>	barres	Degrans.	Balance Iune 10, 2114	Amount Dis Lin Oca Year
Business-type activities: Personne bonds	\$ 4,855,000	\$ "	(\$ 275,090)	\$ 4,590,000	\$ 230,000
Less: mannerfred discount end differed amount Bowle prysible, not	( <u>\$3,935)</u> 4,814,059		<u>3,631</u> ( 271,559)	<u>47,915)</u> 4,542,081	283,000
Notes payable	610 024		(	42135	155,370
Tetal business-type activities	5.5.474.074	<u> </u>	(S433,55 <u>1</u> )	5.4594215	553,5_320
I real governmental and business-type activities	\$11.046,783	1.3472,008	(5_4,162,114)	\$10,235,457	\$675,370

#### Governmental activities:

The City enters into general obligation bonds, lease purchase agreements and notes payable to finance the acquisition and construction of various public projects. These long-term liabilities pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

Governmental activities long-term debt of the City consisted of the following at June 30, 2014:

### General Obligation Bonds:

\$1,695,000 Cay of Franklin, Kennady Genmal Obligation Police Project Refusing and Improvement Books, Series 2009, dated Outsber 13, 2009; fully registered books in the demonstration of \$5,000 or may integral maringly thereof, marring on October 1 in second insufficients of \$160,000 to \$355,000 froncy) 2024; interest 11 22% to \$55 payable semi-accurately on April 1 and October 1; insued to refund five general obligation less perstones agreement and one general obligation less perstones agreement and the sequelation of five police cruisers and a portion of the construction and installation counts of a Cety Their region loop region, recent by the full fath, costil and taxing power of the Cety.

\$\_1,790,000

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

Consequental activities:	
General government	\$ 51,940
Public safety	155,835
Poblic works	38,441
Community and cultural	1,108
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities	\$ 247,324
Business-type activities:	
Water and wastewater	\$ 1,008,242
Fiber Optic	
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities	S 1.124.835

#### NOTE 6 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Revenue bonds and other directly related long-term liabilities, which are introded to be paid from proprietary funds, are included in the accounts of such funds. All other long-term indebtadness is accounted for in the Governmental column of the Governmentwide Statement of Net Position.

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows:

	Balance Faze 30, 2013	Ecrtages	Proraces	Balance Ispa 30, 2014	h One Yee
Gaveramentel sethides: Bonds payable Less: unamentiand discount Bonds payable, not	\$ 2,623,000 ( <u>20,445</u> ) 1,599,555	<u> </u>	(\$ 239,000) 	\$ 1,790,000 (	\$ 240,000 
Notes payable	1.433.155	1572.008	(_1,525,150)	_3500974	
Tool grammetal activities	5.5.02.703	\$ 3572.008	(\$_3 972 <u>,475</u> )	5_5272.211	\$ 249,000

-44-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

## NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

### Notes payable:

Notes payable:

\$3,572,08 Fraikin Bank & Trust Company General Obligation Refunding Note, Series 2013, dated December 20, 2013; interest at 2.2355 payable quatterly beginning March 20, 2014; the final payment of the entire target obstanding principle balance plus accross times will be due December 20, 2016; interest as careed times will be due December 20, 2016; intered in refund the entirecting principal princip

\$ 3,500,975

#### Business-type activities:

### Notes payable:

#### Water and Wastewater Fund:

\$497,979 Kentricky Infrastructure Authority assistance agreement note, dried November 1, 1993; principal and interest at 1.695 payable semi-accountly on free 1 and December 1 through December 2014; proceeds used to finance improvements to wastewater treatment facility.

14,540

\$2,572,240 Kennoky Infrastructure Authority astiliance agreement note, dated July 1, 1995; principal and interest at 12th payable sententialisty on June 1 and December 1 through Loss, 2017; proceeds used to finance upgrades to write water treatment plant.

427,595

Total notes psyable

5 442.135

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

#### Revenue bonds

Revenue bonds are comprised of various issues for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, equipping, renovating, expanding and refurbishing exhitiens and improvements to the City's system. The City pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service.

#### Water and Wastewater Fund:

Revence bonds outstanding at June 30, 2014 were as follows:

	Interest Reles	Firel Menuity Date	Principal at June 30, 2014
Resource bonds, Series 2009 (A) Resource bonds, Series 2012 (B)	200 - 4.375% 200 - 3.75%	December 1, 2024 December 1, 2033	\$ 1,015,000 <u>3,575,000</u> 4,590,000
Les: ಜಾನಾಗಬರ ಭರವಸಿದ್ದು, ಹೋಜಭ ಜನ ರೇಟಾರ ಜಾನಾಡ			(47,919)
Total revenue boods payab	le - business-type a	ctivities	\$ _4,542,011

- (A) \$1,545,000 City of Franklin, Kentucky Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding and Improvement Boods, Series 2009, dated October 13, 2009, fully registered bonds in the decomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof; maturing on December 1 in annual installments of \$125,000 to \$160,000 through 2024; interest payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1; issued to currently refund certain outstanding lease purchase obligations and finance the construction of improvements to City's water and sewer system; secured by water and sewer system revenues.
- (B) \$3,860,000 City of Franklin, Kentucky Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, dated July 24, 2012; fully registered bonds in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof; maturing on December 1 in annual installments of \$135,000 to \$230,000 through 2033; interest payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1; issued to currently refund the City's outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2004; secured by water and sewer system revenues.

-47-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Total project costs were approximately \$4,000,000 and the Authority delivered a certificate of occupancy issued by the Public Protection Cabinet, Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction to Quad'Graphics, Inc. on December 3, 2010. World Color USA, LLC, a subsidiary of World Color Press, Inc., was acquired by Quad'Graphics, Inc. on July 2, 2010.

On December 3, 2010, the City ("bolder") and Authority ("maker") entered into a Promissory Note in the principal amount of \$4,000,000 (see Note 3). As of June 30, 2014, the City has recorded a note receivable from the Authority and uncarned revenues of \$1,661,333 in the General Fund.

The following is a schedule, by year, of future note payments to be received from the Authority pursuant to promissory note repayment terms:

Yeu Enfing	Prizcipal	lsteresi	Total	
2015	\$ 112,931	\$ 287,018	\$ 399,999	
2016	122.298	271,701	399,979	
2017	132,312	267,617	399,599	
2018	143.259	255,700	199,999	
2019	155,116	244,883	399,999	
2020-2024	559.847	1.010.107	1,999,994	
2025-2029	1.471.121	528,873	1,999,994	
2030-2031	534,249	32,415	565,654	
	\$ 3661333	5 2905314	\$ 5565.647	

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### NOTE 6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

#### Aunual Debt Service Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Year Ending		Achies_		se Activities		cro-916c
Isos 32	Freeze	_1::::::	Precipel	FERM	Principal	Ecolor.
2015	\$ 241,000	\$ 135,872	\$ 435,379	\$ 134,555	\$ 575,370	\$ 274,627
2016	245,000	127.317	432,525	129,759	677,525	253,075
2017	1,750,974	81,706	444.243	120,556	4,195,214	272,252
2518	260,000	33,873	3:0,009	(11,387	550,000	143,257
2019	270,600	25.245	315,000	102.549	585,000	123,194
2023 - 2034	432(0)	63,123	1.035.000	424,244	1.465,900	417,354
2025 - 2029	55 030	1,900	983,900	271975	1.075.000	272,575
2030 - 2034			1,092,000	103,652	1.092000	103.653
	\$ 5,290,974	\$ 471.033	\$ 5.032.135	\$ 1.401.434	\$10.123,109	5 1.372.514

#### Industrial Development Project Financing

On April 1, 2010, the City entered into a \$4,000,000 General Obligation Note to fund the construction by the Franklin-Simpson Industrial Authority ("Industrial Authority") of an addition to an existing manufacturing facility to be leased to World Color"). On December 20, 2011, the City entered time a \$3,572,003 General Obligation Refunding Note with Franklin Bank & Trust Company, to pay off the outstanding principal bulance of its JP Morgan Chase Bank General Obligation Refunding Note, Series 2010, dated June 30, 2010. The Refunding Note was issued by the City to reduce future note debt service requirements due to a lower fixed interest rate on Refunding Note.

On March 8, 2010, the City, County of Simpson, Kentucky ("County"), and Industrial Authority entered into an Interlocal Agreement Regarding Industrial Development ("Interlocal Agreement") relating to the World Color industrial development poject. Pursuant to Interlocal Agreement, the City and County agreed to pledge, annually, all amounts necessary for project construction and annual debt service requirements. The Industrial Authority, owner of project real property, entered into a lease agreement with World Color for lease of project real property.

-43-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

## NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE 7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund receivables and payable as of June 30, 2014 are as follows:

	Interfacel Paccinalities	laterfized Payables	
Governmental Funds: General Funds Special Review Funds: Economic Development Revolving Loss Fund Community Development Fund Community Fund	\$ 207,414	1 52,101 115,493 71,936	
Total governmental funds	255.831	239,530	
Proprietury Panda: Weiter and Waste water Fund Sanitation Fund	1,108 4,593	25,052	
Total proprietary famis	5.791	25,052	
	\$ 261.582	\$ 764 512	

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

#### NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

laterfield transfers for the year ending June 30, 2014 are sammarized as follows:

	Transfers In	Iranim Da
Governmental Fords:		
General Fund	\$ 361,953	\$ 2,015,726
Special Reverse Food		
Green's wa-Shady Rest Cemetery Fund	165,550	-
Community Development Fund		351,953
Permanent Fund		
Greenhous-Shady Rest Cemetery Perpetual Fund	=	6,600
Total generational finds	527,503	2,343,679
Proprietary Funds:		
Filer Optic Fund	_1.856,176	=
	\$ 2 113 610	6 1361673

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Fransfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

#### NOTE 9. RETIREMENT PLAN

#### Plan Descriptions and Funding Information

#### County Employees Retirement System

The County Employees Retirement System (CERS) is a cost sharing multiple-employer The County Employees Returement System (CERS) is a cost searing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan created by the Kentucky General Assembly, pursuant to the provision of Kentucky Revised Statzle (KRS) 78-520. CERS is administered by the Board of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems (KRS) and covers substantially all regular full-time City employees (members) employed in membrazedous and hazardous duty positions. The CERS provides for retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of plan berachts to pian members. Rettrement tenenist may be extended to obeneticaries of pian members under certain circumstances. Cost of living adjustments are provided at the discretion of the state legislature. The KRS issues a publicly available annual report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for CERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Loxisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601.

Plan members participating in CERS on or before August 31, 2008, with nonhazardous and hazardous drup positions, were required to contribute 5% and 5%, respectively, of their ennual recedibile compensation. For plan members who began participating in CERS on or after September 1, 2008, contribution rates are 6% and 9%, respectively. Participating employers were required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Per KRS Soction 61.55(3), normal contributions and past service contribution rates shall be determined by the Board of Trustees on the basis of an annual valuation lates shall be determined by the Board of Trustees on the basis of an annual valuation lates shall be determined by the Board of Trustees on the basis of subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates as of the first day of July of the second year of the biennium, if it is determined on the basis of subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates and open day the Board. For the year ended June 30, 2014, participating employers contributed 18.89% (nonhazardous) and 35.7% (hazardous) of each employee's creditable compensation The actuarially determined rates set by the Board for the year ended June 30, 2014, were 18.39% and 35.7% of creditable compensation. Administrative costs of CERS are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings. Plan members participating in CERS on or before August 31, 2008, with nonhazzadous

-51-

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Access to contract the contract of the contrac	\$ 151,695
Interest on net OPER of Egyption	
Adjustment to not sail required contribution	
Arasal OFEB rest (expense)	151,095
Contributions made	( <u>113,635</u> )
Increase in cet OPF8 obligation	37,450
Net OPEB chig stice—beginning of year	64,379
Not Open abliquing and afterer	t In1 110

The City's aroual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Frical Year Exided <u>have</u> 30	Anoul OPEB Cost		
2014	\$151,095	75.254	\$ 101,839
2013	\$151,095	78.5%	\$ 64,379

#### Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2014, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was \$1,455,926, all of which was infunded.

The projection of future benefit payments for an engoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trent. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as extunt results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presented multiport trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accused liabilities for benefits.

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### NOTE 9. RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The City's employer contributions to CERS for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, were equal to the required contributions for each year and are as follows:

Fiscil Year <u>Erofrig</u>	Non-bazzadoru Duty Positions <u>Contribution</u>	Percent of Comparation	Hazardous Duty Positions <u>Co</u> opulysion	Percent of Compensation
2014	\$ 390,339	18 89%	\$ 365,478	35.7059
2013	\$ 372,074	19.55%	\$ 391,834	37.60%
2012	\$ 341.564	18.56%	\$ 357,416	35.765

#### NOTE 10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

#### Pian Description and Contribution Information

In addition to the pension benefits described above in Note 9, the City maintains an informal retirement plan authorized by the Mayor/Commission. The City does not issue a separate, publicly available OPEB financial report. City employees who retired prior to May, 1, 1988, plus employees syouses who retired after May, 1, 1988 but of elected not to participate in the CERS plan (above), are paid a \$100 per month retirement benefit. Twenty retired City employees are currently covered under the plan. Retirement benefit are financed on a pay as you go basis. Payments under the plan totaled \$23,900 for the year ended June 30, 2014.

In addition to providing retirement benefits, the City also provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for these retired employees and their spouses. The cost of the retiree health care and life insurance benefits is borne 100% by the City and is financed on a pay as you go basis. For the year ended June 30, 2014, payments under the plan totaled \$91,111.

#### Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC). The City has elected to calculate the ARC and related information using the alternative measurement method permitted by GASIB Statement 45 for employers in plans with fewer than one hundred total plan members. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to convernormal cost each year and to anoxtize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to recreed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's not OPEB obligation:

-52-

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

#### Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the City and retirees/spouses) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial secreed liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the large members are the substantial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following simplifying assumptions were made:

Marital Status - Marital status of members at the calculation date was assumed to continue throughout retirement.

Mortality - Life expectancies were based on mortality tables from the National Center for Health Statistics.

Healthcare cost trend rate - The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums was based on projections of the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicard Services. A rate of 9.5 percent initially, reduced to an ultimate rate of 5.6 percent after six years, was used.

Health insurance prevalues - 2012 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as the basis for calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

Based on the historical and expected returns of the City's short-term investment portfolio, a discount rate of 4 percent was used. In addition, a simplified version of the unit credit echanial cost method was used. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over retiree life expectancy not to exceed thirty years. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2012 was thirty years.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 11. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all full-time City employees at their option, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to participants until termination, retirement, death or unforesceable emergency.

The plan's investments are held in trust by Public Employee Benefit Service Corporation. Participating employees can contribute to the plan based on either a percertage of compensation or a fixed dollar amount per pay period up to 100% of the participant's total includible compensation or \$17,500 for 2014, whichever is less During the fixeal year ending June 30, 2014, contributions made on behalf of employees totated \$55,642.

#### NOTE 12 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS

#### Commercial and Residential

On September 30, 2013, the City extered into an exclusive commercial and residential franchise agreement with Scott Waste Services, LLC (franchisee), for the collection of residential and commercial solid waste and wastewater treatment plant waste in the City. Pursuant to franchise agreement for residential services, the City shall withhold 10% of the menthly gross receipts (franchise fee) received by the City from utility bill symmetrs attributable to operations conducted by franchisee. In addition, City shall withhold 3% of the menthly gross receipts as a collection fee for its billing and collection services provided. For commercial services, the franchisee shall bill all commercial and industrial outoners and pay to the City a fee of 10% of collected gross receipts for commercial and industrial extronces. The franchise agreement is for a five year period beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2018. The City reserves the right to conduct a mid-term review in March, 2016 and this agreement may be renewed for up to three additional five year terms, upon mutual agreement of both parties.

#### Industrial

In September, 2013, the City entered into non-exclusive industrial franchise agreements with franchisees for the collection of industrial solid waste in the City and/or industrial parks located therein. The industrial franchisee must remit to the City monthly 10% of the gross received artibotable to its operations in the industrial franchise area. The franchise agreements are for a five year period beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2018 and are renewable for three equal terms at the City's direction.

-55-

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 13. INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE PROTECTION (Continued)

Financial contributions to the County for implementation of federal, state or local mendatory regulations shall be determined by negotiation. City shall famish, without change, quantities of water and use of fire hydrauts as County may require or be able to use in its fire flighting operations within the City or Couxy. City shall provide insurance coverage for the fire station facility, however, vehicles owned or operated by Couxty located within the station, shall be insured by the County. County will also provide insurance coverage for property damage, collision and liability insurance coverage for vehicles, personnel and equipment owned by the City and operated by County.

#### Term

The term of the agreement is for ten years, unless extended by mutual agreement or terminated. The agreement shall be renewed for one additional ten year term unless, not less than twelve meants prior to the expiration of this agreement, either party shall provide written notice to the other of its intent to terminate. The agreement may be terminated by either party by written notice at least one year prior to intended termination.

#### NOTE 14. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. The City maintains outside insurance coverage (either commercial or through a pooled insurance program) covering each of those risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is spiritizent to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims did not exceed this commercial coverage in the past three fiscal years.

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

#### NOTE 13. INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR FIRE PROTECTION

On June 21, 2012, the City and Simpson County Fiscal Count ("County") entered into an Interlocal Agreement for fire protection and related energency services. The County presently familines basic fire protection services within its boundaries and the City desires to contract for essential fire fighting, protection and energency services for the City.

At onset of Interlocal Agreement, the City and County fire departments merged into the Franklin-Simpson Fire Rescue operated, managed and administered by the County, with the Simpson County Fire Department Chief being the chief officer of the merged department.

#### Fire Station and Equipment

Fire fighting equipment owned by the City and County will be used both within the City and County for automatic response and mutual aid on a non-exclusive basis and will remain the property of the contributing entity. The County shall have full use of fire station owned by City and shall maintain the station and grounds. The City shall retain ownership of the fire station and shall provide for major capital repairs of station required during the term of the agreement including extensions.

#### Personnel

Staffing of Franklin-Simpson Fire Rescue will be determined by the Fire Chief, in consultation with the County Judge Executive and the Mayor and City Manager, subject to approval of the Simpson County Fiscal Court.

#### Financial Contributions

City contributions to the County to the cost and expense of Franklin-Simpson Fire Rescue shall be at amounts per City's adopted budget payable monthly, however, not less than \$250,000 annually, without the prior written agreement of the parties. City contributions shall be increased or decreased annually, based upon change in consumer price index or cost of living increases set by Governor's Office of Local Development or comparable governmental office, effective July 1" of year increase or decrease is adopted by applicable state office, or the percentage increase in Simpson County's fire department budget, whichever is lower.

-56-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2014

### NOTE IS. CONTINGENCIES

The City has been named as a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the extreme of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the City that resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the City's financial position. Accordingly, no provision for any liability resulting from such litigation has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

The City participates in numerous State and Federal grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustments by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of my related receivable at June 30, 2014 may be impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are not significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules are regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies.

#### NOTE 16. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to privatesector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mangage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. The City is not obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2014, there was one series of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of \$51,787,290.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### NOTE 17. IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB 65

In March, 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assats and Hobilities. GASB Statement No. 65 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that rocksistly, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.

Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Finencial Statements, introduced and defined the elements included in financial statements, including deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. In addition, Concepts Statement 4 provides that reporting a deferred outflow of resources er a deferred inflow of resources should be limited to those instances identified by the Board in suthoristive pronouncements that are established after applicable due process. Prior to the issuance of this Statement, only two such pronouncements have been issued. Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Introducents, requires the reporting of a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources for the changes in fair value of hedging derivative instruments, and Statement No. 9, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements, requires a deferred inflow of resources to be reported by a transferor government in a qualifying service concession arrangement. This Statement amends the financial statement element classification of certain items previously reported as assets and liabilities to be consistent with the definitions in Concepts Statement 4.

This Statement also pravides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as charges in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations.

The City adopted GASB 65 for the year ended June 30, 2014. The adoption of this standard imposted the City's financial position and resulted in a restatement of beginning net position in the amount of \$28,474 for governmental activities and \$162,085 for basiness-type activities due to this change in accounting principle.

-59.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Other than Management's Discussion and Analysis)

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### NOTE 18. IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB 68

The GASB has issued the following Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27." The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This Statement will become effective for the City in fiscal year 2015. Although expected to be significant, management has not yet determined the specific impact of this Statement on the financial statements.

-60-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE General Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Bodget	Final Bodget	Actual_	Variance with Firal Budget Positive (Negative)
Revenues				
Taxes	\$ \$23,979	\$ 855,018	\$ 877,121	\$ 22,103
Occupational taxes	2,035,469	2,047,305	1,941,492	( 105,813)
Insurance premium taxes	1,424,500	1,424,500	1.404.095	( 20,405)
Business hoenve taxes	460,031	512,331	605.816	93,485
Franchise taxes	95,056	94,056	100,226	6,170
letergovernmental	498 217	180,667	190,729	10,062
Interfaced charges	839.614	839,614	839,614	
Fixes and forfeitures	51,500	70,896	73,566	2,670
Miscellaneous	498,015	524,971	514,631	( 10,340)
Total revenues	_6,726,381	6,549,358	6,547,290	(2,05%)
Expenditures				
General government				
Legislative:				
Personal services	117,761	117,319	116,463	156
Contractual services	21,157	58,090	22,837	35,253
Materials and supplies	50	374	313	( 14)
Other	16.062	16.817	15,574	1,243
SER	10.002	10,411	15,574	1,2412
Total legislative	155,030	192,600	155,262	37,338
Administrative:				
Personal services	494,655	444,416	440,882	3,534
Contractual services	12,600	15.393	5,157	10,236
Meterials and supplies	3,700	8,018	8,863	( 845)
Other	5.850	7,532	5,379	2,153
Total administrative	. 516,815	475,359	469,281	15,072
Finance and accounting:				
Personal services	494,066	478,792	478,249	513
Contractual services	120.479	161,845	164,718	( 2,873)
Materials and supplies	47,050	43,232	52,277	( 4,045)
Other	12,050	12,100	10,739	
Total finance and				
accounting	673,645	700,969	705,983	(5,014)
Risk mass gement	323,331	347,154	340,661	(33,507)
Total general government	1.663,821	1,716,082	1.702,187	13.895

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE General Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Badget	First Bodget	Actual	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Public safety:				
Police department:				
Administration:				
Personal services	\$ 400,674	\$ 327,630	\$ 337,502	(\$ 9,872)
Contractual services	30,574	28,784	27,979	805
Materials and supplies	20,335	22,136	20,625	1,511
Other	5,650	6,296	6,845	(549)
Total administration	457,233	384,846	392,951	(8_105)
Patrol:				
Personal services	1,456,566	1,472,223	1,500,403	( 28,180)
Contractual services	41,500	53,598	37,370	16,228
Materials and supplies	102,950	106,026	98,580	7,446
Other	7,600	7,407	8,915	(1,508)
Total pairol	1.608.016	_1.639.254	_1,645,268	(6,014)
Non-sworn personnel:				
Personal services	69,055	67,384	65,687	1,697
Contractual services	2,100	500	· -	500
Materials and supplies	250	250		250
Other	175	175	<del>-</del>	175
Total con-swore personnel	71,590	63,302	65,687	2,622
Code enforcement:				
Personal services	_	72,740	71,724	1,016
Contractual services	4,700	4,720	3,782	938
Materials and supplies	5,800	4,360	4,532	( 172)
Other	200	200		200
Total code enforcement	10.700	82,020	\$0,018	1,982
Total police department	_2,147,539	2,174,429	2.183,944	(9,5)5)
Fire department:				
Inspection and administration:				
Coxtractual services	1.277	1,352	1,166	186

-62-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE General Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Badşet	Final Budget	Actual	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues		(0 (2.722)	(0. 107.7(1)	(* 120.00)
over (under) expenditures	<u>\$ 213,296</u>	( <u>\$ 63,702</u> )	(\$ 193,364)	(\$_129,662)
(Wher financing sources (0945):				
Transfers in	_	310,050	361,953	51,953
Transfers cut	( 159,550)	( 639,500)	( 2,015,726)	( 1,376,226)
Proceeds from refunding note	***		3,572,00E	3,572,008
Debt service - refunding note			( 3.544,908)	( 3,544,908)
principal Sale of capital assets	6.003	513.600	487,950	( 25,650)
Size of cibrati assers	0,092		497,730	( FZXXX)
Total other financing sources (uses)	(153,550)	184,100	( <u>l.138,723</u> )	(_1,322,823)
Net change in find balance	59,746	120,398	( 1,332,087)	( 1,452,485)
Fund balances, beginning of year	3,524,459	_3,524,459	3,524,459	
Fund balances, end of year	\$.3,584,205	\$ 3,644,857	\$ 2,192,372	( <u>\$_1,452.485</u> )

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE General Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Budget	Fi=al Bodget	Actual	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Expenditures (continued) Fire department (continued) Firefighting:				
Contractual services	\$ 232,436	S 232,416	\$ 266,719	( <b>5</b> 34,283)
Total fire department	233,713	233,788	267,185	( <u>34.097</u> )
Total public safety	2,381,252	2,403,217	2,451,829	(43,612)
Public works:				
Personal services	625,044	635,610	615,415	20,195
Contractual services	154,883	127,736	174,258	( 46,522)
Materials and supplies	123,153	121,348	119,775	1,573
Other	5,720		3,724	(264)
Total public works	903,800	838,154	913.172	(25,018)
Community services				
Economic development	280,038	313,270	269,919	43,281
Parks and recreation	175,000	175,000	174.038	962
Total community services	455,038	488.270	444,027	44,243
Capital outley:				
Vehicles	89,888	123,773	158,753	( 34,980)
Equipment	126,378	130,367	109,441	20,926
Plant in service	17,000	8,803	18,685	( 9,882)
Land and land improvements	310,000	318,350	384,416	(65,056)
Total capital outlay	543,266	581,293	671,295	(90.602)
Debt service:				
Principal	387,191	382,947	379,279	3,668
Interest	168,717	148,697	178,865	(30,768)
Total debt service	555,908	531,044	558,144	(27,169)
Total expenditures	6,513,085	6,613,060	6,740.654	(127,594)

-63-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

### Infrastructure Condition and Maintenance Data June 30, 2014

### Modified Approach to Infrastructure

The following schedules are presented by the City as supplementary information on infrastructure assets using the modified approach:  $\frac{1}{2} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \frac{1}{2} \left( \frac{1}{2} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \frac$ 

		2\	14	Sacry Feet of N			2312
	OCI Condition Facing	S.core Feet	_%_	Square Feet	_%_	Square Feat	<u>. 5.</u>
Acceptable Marginally deficient Moderately deficient Severily deficient	75 - 100 50 - 74 25 - 49 0 - 24	1,5%,060 1,234,920 230,046	71.05 24.43 4.53	3,456,839 1,270,488 268,518 32,445	61.74 25.27 5.34 65	3,685,758 1,067,209 224,712	74.65 21.44 4.51
Total		5,061,025	100.00	5.028,271	क्षिळ	4.974.672	100.00
		2014	(coperison of 1	oimeda Au		ensancia 2011.	2010
೦ಗ್ರಹ್ಷೆಯ ಆರ್ಬ್ Actual	4	\$ (85,190) \$ (62,560	\$ 126,34 \$ 120,45			113,550 113,161	\$ 211,561 \$ 202,673

The condition of the City's roads is determined using its Road Management and Inspection Program (RMIP). The road condition is rated from 1 to 100 (OCI), with 100 being new or recently paved.

It is the City's policy to assess the condition of the reads annually for cracks, potholes, misalignment, drainage condition and number of specific safety hazards.

The City has not changed the measurement scale used to assess and report the condition of its roads for the past 10 years.

The City's goal is to have all roads at 90 - 100 OCI rating.

## SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - OPEB

Actavial Valcation Data	Autorial Value of Assets (a)	Actarial Accrued Liability (AAL)— Unit Credit Cost (b)	Uzfuded AAL (UAAL) (b - a)	Funded Rutio (a/b)	Covered Fayord 10	UAAL as a Percentage of Corerod Payroll ((b = a) / c)
6/30/2011	\$ -0-	\$ 1,595,663	\$ 1,595,663	0.0%	N/A	N/A
6/30/2012	\$ -0-	\$ 1,455,926	\$ 1,455,926	0.0%	N/A	N/A
6/39/2013	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
6/30/2014	N/A	N/A	N'A	N/A	N/A	N/A

N/A - Actuarial valuation not performed.

Information for prior years is not available as the City's first actuarial valuation was for the year ended June 10, 2011.

-66-

### SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### SCHEBULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB June 30, 2014

Fiscal Year Ended	Employer	Annual Required	Percentage
June 30	Contributions	Contribution	Contributed
2011	\$ 148,623	\$ 158,818	93.58%
2012	128,804	151,095	85.25%
2013	119,202	151,095	78.89%
2014	113,635	151,095	75.21%

Information for prior years is not available as the City's first actuarial valuation was performed for the year ended June 30, 2011.

## -67-

### Nonmajor Governmental Funds

### Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Greenlawn-Shady Rest Correctory Fund - This fund is used to account for the activities of the Greenlawn-Shady Rest Correctory. The correctory is operated by the City with input from an advisory bound.

Community Development Fund - This fund is used to account for the federal community development block great program and state economic development great programs restricted for various governmental beasing and community development and economic development projects.

Menicipal Aid Fund - This fined is used to account for the City's share of Equid field tax receipts, mineral and coal severance tax receipts and special municipal road aid bond receipts restricted for public works eligible costs.

Economic Development Revolving Loan Find - This find is used to account for economic development incensive loans to local industrial treasure. Loan repayments are restricted to finare economic development activities.

#### Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government's programs.

Francis Harris Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund - This fund is used to account for monies held in trust from a memorial from Francis Harris to provide for the future care and maintenance of the Greenlawn Shady Rest Cemetery.

Greenlawn - Shady Rest Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund - This fund is used to account for monies set aside to provide for the future care and maintenance of the Greenlawn Shady Rest Cemetery.

#### COMBINING BALANCE SHEET NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS June 30, 2014

	Special Revenue			Fords			
	.Commany.	Connectly Development	Maricipal Aid	Economic Development	Tetal	Cezesny <u>Perpetul</u>	Normajor Generalisental Amils
ASSETS							
Cash and eash equivalents Certificates of deposit Receivables (set of ellowance for modificables):	\$ 59,247	<b>s</b> =	\$ 167,702 —	s	\$ 226,543	\$ 56,292 437,945	\$ 283,241 437,945
Accounts	8,750	_	-	-	8,750		8,750
Intergovernmental	-	83,287	49,565		132,852		132,852 59, <del>99</del> 3
Due from other fends Precaid thems	454	_	-	50,993	50,993 484	_	484
Restricted acress:	454	-	-	_	454		
Cash and cash equivalents		71,000			71,000	=	71.000
Total assets	\$ 68.481	<u>\$_154,247</u>	<u>\$_217,267</u>	<u>5_52593</u>	<u>\$_491,028</u>	<u>\$ 494,231</u>	\$ 935,266
LIABILITIES AND FUND BA	ILANCES						
Lishibities						_	
Accounts payable	\$ 274	s	\$ 1,261	s –	\$ 1,535	s -	\$ 1,535
Due to other funds	71.937	115,493			187,430		167,430
Total liabilities	72,211	115,493	1,261	=	188.965		114.865
Fand hulmones: Nonspendable:							
Prepaid Heras	484	-	-		484	=	484
Perpetual care		_	_		_	494,238	494,238
Viniting to							301,579
Other proposes			216,006	50,933	301_579	<del></del>	
Total find balances (deficit)	(3,735)	38,794	216,006	50,993	_202001	494.215	795.301
Total Eshillaies and final Inherites	\$63.481	\$ . 154.237	\$_217,257	\$ 50.593	\$ 491,024	<u>\$_494.23\$</u>	\$ ' 585.255

-68-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### COMBINING BALANCE SHEET NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS June 30, 2014

	Francis Harris Cemetery <u>Perpetual</u>	Greenlawn- Shedy Rest Cemetery Perpensal	Total Neumajor Perminent Funds
ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Certificates of deposit	\$ 336 50,000	\$ 55,956 387,946	\$ 56,292 437,946
Total assets	\$ 59.336	\$ 443,902	\$ 494,238
FUND BALANCES Nonspendable: Cemetery maintenance Perpetual care	\$ 50,336	443,902	5 50,336 443,902
Total fund balances	\$50,336	\$ 443,502	\$ 494,238

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Spriid Represe					
	<u>Cezent</u>	Constally Personal	Miziripal <u>Aif</u>	Economic <u>Development</u>	Total	
Revenues intergovernmental Charges for sales and services Countrations Investment intende Miscellanders.  Total revenues	\$	\$ 322,000	\$ 232,139 		\$ 554,139 85,800 	
Expenditures		322,000		<del></del>	_641351	
Correct: Public works Community services Capital oxilay	246,125 3.027	27,600	164,313		164,113 273,125 3,027	
Total esponditures	249,152	27,000	164.113		445.265	
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures	(162.239)	295,090	68.288		201.088	
Other financing sources (tass): Transfers in Transfers out	165,559	<u>(_361,953)</u>	<del>-</del>		165,550 (351.953)	
Total other financing sources (sees)	165.550	(_361.553)			(195,423)	
Net oberge in find bilances	3,350	( 65,953)	68,285	_	4,685	
Find beliances, beginning of you	(	105,747		59,993	297.378	
Find balances (deficit), and of year	(\$3.730)	S 31734	\$ 216506	\$_50,593	\$_302.651	

#### COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES NOMMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS YEAF Edded June 30, 2014

Fands . Considery Perpetual	Total Nicasjis Gwernietal Fizik
\$ 9,200 2,790  	\$ 554,139 86,500 9,200 3,114 90 653,343
2,552 = 	164,113 275,677 3,027 442,817
9,438	210.526
	165,559 ( <u>367,553)</u>
(	( <u>202,453</u> ) 8,123
490,800 5_491,218	

Variance with

# CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Greenlawn - Shady Rest Cemetery Special Revenue Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Bodget	Fixal Bulget	Actual	Fixal Budget Positive (Negative)
Revences				
Charges for sales and services	\$ 80,550	\$ 72,500	\$ 86,800	\$ 14,300
Investment income	38	38	62	24
Miscellaneous	285	285	90	(195)
Total revenues	<u>89,873</u>	72,823	86,952	14,129
Expenditures				
Correct				
Community services: Personal services	7,147	7.008	7.008	=-
			184,657	913
Contractual services	160,750 2,500	185,570 2,500	5.574	( 3.074)
Materials and supplies Administrative overhead	49,000	40,000	40,000	( 2,074)
Other	\$3,000 \$,128	7,528	8,886	(1358)
Total community	9,128	7,324	0,689	( 1336)
services	238,525	242,606	246,125	(3.519)
Capital cotlay	6,000	6,000	3,027	2.973
Total expenditures	244,525	248,606	249,152	(546)
Deficiency of revenues under				
espenditures	( 163,652)	( 175,783)	( 162,200)	13,583
Other featuring sources: Transfers in	162,450	162,450	165.550	3,100
Net change in first balance	( 1,202)	( 13,333)	3,350	16,683
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year	(7,030)	(	(7.0\$0)	=
First balance (deficit), end of year	(\$ 8.282)	( <u>\$20,413</u> )	(\$3,730)	5 16,683

#### Total Neomajor Permanent Funds Greenlawn-Shady Rest Cemetery Perpetual Francis Harris Cemetery Perpetual Revestes Investment income Contributions 2,140 9,250 650 650 11,340 11,990 Total reverses Expenditures Current Community services \_\_\_\_\_2,552 2.552 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 9,438 1,902) 11,340 Other financing uses Transfers out 6,000) 6,000) Not change in fund balance 1,902) 5,340 3,438 Fund balance, beginning of year \$2,238 438,562 490.800 Fund balance, and of year 50,336 \$ 443,902 \$ ..494,235

-71-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Community Development Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reverses Literroverusiental	Original Budget	Final Bodget		Variance with Final Bridget Fositive (Negative)
	•	,	,	-
Expenditures Current: Economic development Excess of revenues over		<u>101,579</u>	27.000	74,579
expenditures	_	220,421	295,000	74,579
Other Imancing sources (uses) Transfers out		(357,374)	(361.953)	(4,579)
Net change in fund balance	_	( 136,953)	( 65,953)	70,000
Fixed balance, beginning of year Fixed balance, end of year	105,747 S105,747	105,747	105,747 \$18,794	 \$70,600
TEZ (MERC, CAS IN )CZ	a Inchi	(A	y48,123	<u> </u>

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEBULE Musicipal Aid Special Revenue Fund Year Ended Jone 30, 2014

Revenues	Original Budgat	First Bodget	_ Actul	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
intergovernmental:				
Liquid feel tax Mineral and coal severance	\$ [96,77]	\$ 196,771	\$ 226,659	\$ 29,838
Wifely and coal reverance	6,742	6,742	5,480	( 1,262)
Investment income	285	235	262	23)
Total revenues	203.798	203,798	232,401	28,603
Expenditures				
Current:				
Public works	195.500	196,500	164,113	32.387
Excess of reverses over				
Excess of reverses over	7.298	7,298	68,285	60,990
cifeciales	,,,,,,	.,		*****
Fund balance, beginning of your	147,718	147,718	147,718	
E Balance and afores	\$155.016	\$ 155,016	\$ 216,006	S69.990
Fund balance, end of year	5 T 5 5 T T T	\$ 133,010	2610,000	27,920

-74-

### CTTY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. Water and Waster after Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Budget	Final Budget	Actual	Variance with Firal Budget Positive (Negative)
Operating reverses:				
Charges for sales and services:				
Water division	\$ 2,516,600	\$ 2,354,082	\$ 2,344,052	(\$ 10,030)
Wastewater division	2,081,690	2.020,953		(18,195)
Total operating reverses	4,598,200	4,375,035	4,346,810	(28,225)
Nonoperating reverses:				
Investment income	11,600	6,349	5,575	( 774)
Sales of assets	_	~	7,560	7,560
Miscelleneous	15,000	9,513	106,950	97.431
Total nonoperating				
revenues	26.600	15,862	120,025	104,163
Total reverses	4.624.800	4,390,897	4,466,835	75,938
Expenditures				
Water division:				
Production:				
Personal services	330,991	344,461	344,207	254
Contractual services	199,315	187,227	173,334	13,893
Materials and supplies	175,750	190,317	185,173	5,144
Other	6.502	6.655	5_482	1.183
Total water production	712.556	728.670	708,196	29.47.4
Distribution:				
Personal services	397,869	388,078	389,464	( 1,316)
Contractual services	55,929	75,159	62,418	12,741
Materials and supplies	224,500	186,948	143,527	43,421
Other	15,500	9,976	9,450	416
Total water distribution	693,798	660,161	504.899	55.262

#### PROPRIETARY FUNDS

### Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the City's management is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primaryly through user tharges or where the City's management has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

Water and Wastewater Fund - This fund is used to account for the extivities of the Water and Wastewater operations.

Sanitation Fund - This fund is used to account for the activities of the City's sanitation and landfill operations.

Fiber Optic Fund - This fund is used to account for the activities of the City's fiber optic

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Water and Wastewater Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

n b trans	Original Bedset	Final Badget	Actual	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Expenditures (continued) Meter reading and maintenance:				
Personal services	\$ 68,261	\$ 71,247	\$ 72,296	(\$ 1,049)
Contractual services	9,150	9,413	6,661	2,752
Materials and supplies	118,300	111,300	93,600	17,692
Oper	1,390	1,389	\$04	576
Total water meter reading				
and maintenance	197,011	193,340	173,369	19,971
Total water division	1,603,365	_1,582,171	1,486,464	95,707
Wastewater division:				
Trestment:				
Personal services	272,395	266,813	274,150	( 7,337)
Contractual services	202,700	242,576	254,017	( 11,441)
Materials and supplies	84,615	81,374	66,190	15,184
Other	4,325	4.415	2.361	2,054
Total wastewater treatment	564,035	595,178	596,718	(1,5+0)
Collection and rehabilitation:				
Personal services	259,714	270,030	269,879	151
Contractual services	61,001	60,100	56,312	3,788
Materials and supplies	85,200	70,199	32,607	37,592
Other	3,963	4,589	3,660	989
Total wastewater collection	1			
and rehabilitation	469,878	404,918	362.398	42,529
Total wastewater division	973.913	1,000,095	959,116	40,980
Administrative overbead	500,114	500,114	500,114	-
Debt service:				
Principal	442,889	442,889	442,839	
Interest	147,997	148,222	88,372	59,850
Administrative fees	1,136		1,136	. 77
Total debt service	592,022	592,247	<u>532,397</u>	59,850
Capital outlays	592,010	648.090	297,912	350,171
Total expenditures		4,322,718	_3.776.010	<u>546,703</u>

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Water and Wastewater Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Budget	Final Brdget	Actual	Variance with Fixal Budget Positive (Negative)
Excess of reverses over expenditures	S363,376	5 68.179	\$ 690,8	25 <b>\$ 622,646</b>
Add: Principal payments Capital cottays, including capitalized labor and materials Less: Depreciation expense Ameritzation expense			442,8 641,0 ( 1,008,2 ( 3,0	54 \$2)
Change in net position			763,5	<u>u</u>
Net position, beginning of year			17,897,2	55
Change in accounting principle - GASB #65			(162,0	មា
Net position, beginning of year, restated			17,735,1	83
Net position, end of year			<u>\$ 18,498,7</u>	<u>25</u>

-77-

### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Fiber Optic Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Bolist	Food Poore	Actoral	Variance with Final Bodget Positive (Negative)
Operating revenues: Cargos for services	\$ 135,157	\$ 125,290	\$ 124,326	(\$ 564)
Fines and Refelances	155,157	10	16	6
Total operating sevenues	(35,157	125,300	124,342	( 958)
Necessaring revenues				
Integramental	50,000	59,000	59,000	
Total reverses	185.157	175,300	174,342	(958)
Esperatitures				
Personal services	139,960	132,872	137,731	( 4,859)
Commented services	338,577	339,077	227,009	112,069
Materials and supplies	64,550	41,732	44,697	( 3,165)
Opa	5,000	3,043	3,130	( 87)
Capital outry			45,153	(95,1,28)
Total expensiones	548.(67	\$16,724	457.925	58.792
Excess (deficiency) of revenues				
our (करंस) स्पृक्तकंकर	( 342,939)	( 341,424)	( 283,533)	57,841
Other firmedal sources: Transfers in		479.950	1.855.176	1,375,226
Excess (deficiency) of reverses and other francing sources over (ander) expenditures	( <u>\$ 362,935)</u>	\$138,526	1,572,593	\$1,434,067
(EGG) especiales	( Land Company	V	2,512,22	P
Add. Capital outlays			45,158	
Less: Depreciation expanse			(116,593)	
Charge in cert position			1,501,158	
Nat position, beginning of you			794,679	
Net position, and of year			2 2 2 2 5 8 3 7	

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Sanitation Fund Year Ended June 30, 2014

	Original Brdgg	Fred Belget	Acteal	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Operating reversion				
Charges for services:				
Head pick-up	\$ 630,000	\$ 627,424	\$ 629,521	\$ 2,097
Commercial darrester	339,200	83,237	74,537	( 8,700)
Collection fees	28,400	20,701	21,323	602
Fines and forfestures	35,000	25,118	24,491	( 627)
Franchise fee	145,000	[45,693	165.564	20.871
Total operating revenues	1,177,600	901,573	915,816	14,243
Noneparating reverses:				
Investment income	652	230	3#5	156
Total reverses	1.178.259	901,803	916,292	14.399
Emendatues				
Sanitation operations:				
Personal services	12,000	12,000	21,925	( 9,925)
Contractual services	947,000	692,476	710,494	( 18,018)
Lastrovo svietuista	209.502	209,500	209,5/31	
Total expenditures	1.168.502	913,976	941,919	(27,943)
Excess (कंतिलंकात्र) व्हारक्षकाळा काल काकासीयका	\$9,750	(512.173)	( 25,717)	(\$13.544)
Net position, beginning of year			3,330	
Net position, end of year			(\$22,387)	

-78-



1017 Gobaye Street - F.O. Kor. 216 Kowling Green, Kenthadry 421/02-416 Pages (1775) 843-616 Fize (2775) 843-614

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRIFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor, Commissioners and City Menager City of Franklin, Kertucky

We have sudded, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial suddle contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comproller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the basices-type octivities, each ratio fund and the aggregate remaining fluid information of the City of Franklin, Kentucky (City) as of and for the year coded Ima 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 3, 2015.

#### Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the licencial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the endit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or amployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and control restorates to a timely hair. A material weakers is a deficiency, or a condition of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material mistratement of the entiry's functional statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely hasis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that it less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to ment attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our andit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify cortain deficiencies in internal control described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be significant deficiencies (2014-1).

The Honorable Mayor, Commissioners and City Manager City of Franklin, Kentucky Page Two

#### Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and great agreements, recommissions with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an explane on complicate with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of nancemplisence or other material that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Scandards.

### City of Franklin, Keatucky's Response to Findings

The City's response to the findings identified in our sold its described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The City's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the sold of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

#### Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sociation in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not estitable for any other purpose.

Bowling Green, Kennicky April 3, 2015

#### CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

#### SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES Year Ended June 30, 2013

### FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

#### SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

#### 2014-1 Segregation of Duties

Criteria: The objectives of internal control are to provide reasonable, but not obsolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and financial statements are reliable. The segregation of accounting duties is an essential element of effective internal country, involving the separation of the currody of assets from the related recording of those transactions.

Condition: As it often the case with smaller governmental tests, segregation of conflicting duties within the City's Finance department is difficult because of the limited number of personnel. Delegation of duties with a limited matter of personnel cannot adequately provide the separation of custody of assets from the related recording and maniforing of unmaniform.

Effect: Peterzially material misstatements in the financial statements or material missopropriations of assets due to error or finand could occur and not be prevented or detected in a timely minner.

Cause: Duties in various transaction cycles are not adequately segregated.

Recommendation: While the City has implemented mitigating econols to compensate for some segregation of duties issues since the previous year, we encourage you to limit, to the extent possible, performance of incompatible duties by individuals in the City's Finance department.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: The City will continue to evaluate the cost vs. the benefit of hiring additional personnel and further implementing compensating controls to mitigate the risk that internal control objectives will not be achieved.